
 
                                  

 
 
                                                            

AGENDA 
 

For a meeting of the 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
to be held on 

TUESDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2006 
at 

2.00 PM 
in the 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, ST PETERS HILL, 
GRANTHAM 

Duncan Kerr, Chief Executive    

 

Committee 
Members: 

Councillor George Chivers, Councillor Mike Exton, Councillor Brian 
Fines (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Bryan Helyar, Councillor Reginald 
Howard, Councillor Fereshteh Hurst, Councillor Mrs Maureen Jalili, 
Councillor Albert Victor Kerr, Councillor Alan Parkin (Chairman), 
Councillor Stanley Pease, Councillor Mrs Angeline Percival, 
Councillor Norman Radley, Councillor Bob Sandall, Councillor Ian 
Selby, Councillor Ian Stokes and Councillor Frank Turner 

  
Committee Support 
Officer: 

 
Malcolm Hall  Tel: 01476 406118 

  

 

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting 
to consider the items of business listed below. 

 
1. MEMBERSHIP THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE TO NOTIFY THE COMMITTEE OF ANY 

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS. 
  
2. APOLOGIES 
  
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST: MEMBERS ARE ASKED TO DECLARE AN 

INTEREST IN MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION AT THE MEETING. 
  
4. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 14TH NOVEMBER 2006 
  

         (Enclosure) 
  
5. PLANNING MATTERS: 
 To consider applications received for the grant of planning permission – reports 

prepared by the Area Planning Officers. 

 



 
List for Debate       (Enclosure) 

  
6. INFORMATION RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND OTHER 

PLANNING ACTIVITIES. 
  

Report No. PLA631 by the Acting Development Control Services  

 Manager                                                                      

(Enclosure) 

 

 

 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
7. ENFORCEMENT ACTION 
 Untidy property and garden, 21 Elm Grove, Grantham 

 
 Report PLA630 by the Acting Development Control Services.   

             

       (Enclosure) 
 

  
8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL 

CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 
  
 

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

It is anticipated that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public may be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business because of the likelihood 
that otherwise exempt information, as described in paragraph 2 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public. 
 



 

1 

MINUTES 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 

TUESDAY, 14 NOVEMBER 2006 
 

 
 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 
  
Councillor George Chivers 
Councillor Mike Exton 
Councillor Brian Fines (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs  Joyce Gaffigan 
Councillor Bryan Helyar 
Councillor Reginald Howard 
Councillor Fereshteh Hurst 
Councillor Mrs Maureen Jalili 
 

Councillor Albert Victor Kerr 
Councillor Alan Parkin (Chairman) 
Councillor Stanley Pease 
Councillor Mrs Angeline Percival 
Councillor Norman Radley 
Councillor Bob Sandall 
Councillor Ian Selby 
Councillor Frank Turner 
 

OFFICERS OTHER MEMBERS 
 

Interim Manager – Development   
Control Services     

Principal Planning Officer    
Acting Principal Planning Officer    

Committee Support Officer 
Legal Executive 
Business Manager – Development  

and Building Control 
Chief Executive (agenda item 6 only) 
 

Councillor G W Taylor 
Councillor Mrs A Woods 
 

In accordance with Council procedure rule 24. 5, Councillor Mrs Woods spoke in 
connection with application SU.4  

 
748. APOLOGIES 

  
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Stokes. 

 
  

749. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

  
The following interests were noted:-  

 
Councillor Exton – personal interest in application SU.4, under the 

Members’ Code of Conduct, and further under the Probity in Planning Code 
of Guidance, to avoid the impression of pre-determination or bias towards 
the application, in view of his distance acquaintanceship with the 

applicants. 
 

Councillor N Radley – personal and prejudicial interest in application NR.2,  

Agenda Item 4 



2 

under the Members’ Code of Conduct, and further under the Probity in 
Planning Code of Guidance, to avoid  the impression of pre-determination 

or bias towards the application, in view of his relationship to the applicant. 

 
  

750. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 24TH OCTOBER 2006 

  

The minutes of the meeting held on 24th October 2006 were confirmed as a 
correct record of decisions taken. 

 
 

  

751. PLANNING MATTERS - LIST FOR DEBATE 

  
Decision:- 

 
To determine applications, or make observations, as listed below:- 
 

  (2.05pm Councillor Mrs Hurst entered the meeting) 

  
SU.1 

 
Application ref: S04/1455/56 
 

Description:  Construction of 14 sheltered housing units 
 

Location: Holland House Residential Home, 35, Church Street, 
Market Deeping 

 

Decision:  Approved 
 

Noting report of site inspection, an objection from Market Deeping Town 
Council, no objection from the Welland and Deepings Internal Drainage 
Board, comments from the Highway Authority, Community Archaeologist, 

Conservation Officer and English Heritage and objections from nearby 
residents, together with information in support from the applicants and 

comments made by Members at the meeting. 
 

It was proposed and seconded that, as the proposal was in accordance with 
national and local policies as set out in policies EN.1, C5 and E5 of the 
South Kesteven Local Plan, and as the issues relating to highway 

safety/parking, impact on the character and setting of the adjacent listed 
building and residential amenity are material considerations but are not 

sufficient in this case to indicate against the proposal and to outweigh the 
policies referred to above, it be approved subject to the following 
conditions:- 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 

2. Samples of the materials to be used for all external walls and 
roofs shall be submitted to the District Planning Authority 

 



3 

before any development to which this permission relates is 
commenced and only such materials as may be approved in 

writing by the authority shall be used in the development. 

3. No development shall take place until there has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the district planning 
authority a plan showing the exact location, species and 
spread of all trees and hedges on the site and those 

proposed to be felled or uprooted during building operations 
together with measures for their protection in the course of 

development. 

4.   Before the development is commenced, there shall be 
submitted to and approved by the district planning authority 

details of the means of surfacing of the unbuilt portions of 
the site. 

5.   No development shall take place until details of the proposed 
screen wall have been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority.  The agreed scheme shall be 

implemented before the development hereby permitted is 
brought into use. 

6.   Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development Order) 1995 (or 

any order revoking or re-enacting that order with or without 
modification), no windows/dormer windows (other than 
those expressly authorised by this permission) shall be 

constructed unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. 

7.   This permission shall be read in conjunction with the 
submitted application and the amended plan ACH/01/BK 
001A and 002A received by the local planning authority from 

the applicant's agent on 29 August 2006 unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  

 
SU.2 

 

Application ref: S05/LB/6435/69 
 

Description: Partial demolition of store, ground floor extensions and 
internal alterations 

 

Location:  10, Ironmonger Street, Stamford 
 

Decision:  Refused 
 
Noting comments from the Historic Buildings Advisor with regard to the 

original and amended submissions, comments from English Heritage, 
Stamford Civic Society and Stamford Town Council, representation from a 

nearby resident and detailed submissions in support from the applicants, 
including a structural engineer’s report and archaeological assessment 
together with a report on a meeting with an Inspector from English 

 



4 

Heritage and comments from the Government Office, further letter in 
support from the applicants and comments made by Members at the 

meeting. 
 

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the application be refused for 
the following reason:-  
 

1. The proposal involves the removal of the upper floors of a 
large three-storey part stone/part brick and Collyweston slate 

roofed outbuilding and an extension, to infill the rear yard, of a 
Grade II* listed building fronting the western side of 
Ironmonger Street. 

 

It is considered that, notwithstanding the recommendations contained in 

the Structural Engineers report, the proposed works of alteration would 
have a detrimental effect on the character and appearance of the 
application building, which currently relates well, in terms of form and 

scale, to the form and scale of other buildings in the vicinity and makes a 
positive contribution to the character of the area.  The proposal would 

therefore be contrary to central government guidance contained in PPG15 
(Planning and the Historic Environment), Policy BE3 of the Lincolnshire 

Structure Plan (Deposit Draft - April 2004) and Policies C4, C6 and C7 of 
the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 

SU.3 

 

Application ref: S05/0890/69 
 
Description:  Partial demolition of store, ground floor extensions and 

  internal alterations 
 

Location:  10, Ironmonger Street, Stamford 
 
Decision:  Refused 

 
Noting comments from the Historic Buildings Advisor with regard to the 

original and amended submissions, comments from English Heritage, 
Stamford Civic Society and Stamford Town Council, representation from a 
nearby resident and detailed submissions in support from the applicants, 

including a structural engineer’s report and archaeological assessment 
together with a report on a meeting with an Inspector from English 

Heritage and comments from the Government Office, further letter in 
support from the applicants and comments made by Members at the 
meeting. 

 
It was proposed, seconded and agreed that the application be refused for 

the following reason:-  
 

1. The proposal involves removal of the upper floors of a large 

three-storey part stone/park brick and Collyweston slate 

 



5 

roofed outbuilding and an extension, to infill the rear yard, of a 
Grade II* listed building fronting the western side of 

Ironmonger Street. 

 

It is considered that, notwithstanding the recommendations contained in 
the Structural Engineers report, the proposed works of alteration would 
have a detrimental effect on the character and appearance of the 

application building, which currently relates well, in terms of form and 
scale, to the form and scale of other buildings in the vicinity and makes a 

positive contribution to the character of the area.  The proposal would 
therefore be contrary to central government guidance contained in PPG15 
(Planning and the Historic Environment), Policy BE3 of the Lincolnshire 

Structure Plan (Deposit Draft - April 2004) and Policies C4, C6 and C7 of 
the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 

 SU.4 

 

Application ref: S06/0439/69  
 

Description:  Residential development (outline) 
 

Location: Land And Premises Of E Bowman & Sons, Cherryholt 
Road, Stamford 

 

Decision:  Deferred 
 

Noting report of site inspection, comments from the Highway Authority, 
Environment Agency, Head of Policy and Economic Regeneration, Housing 
Solutions and Community Archaeologist together with no objections from 

Stamford Town Council and representations from nearby residents and 
businesses, together with detailed submissions in support from the 

applicants and a further letter of objection from an owner of nearby 
business premises with further comments from the Team Leader of 
Planning Policy, and together with comments made by Members at the 

meeting. 
 

It was proposed and seconded that, as the proposal was in accordance with 
National and Local Policies as set out in Planning Policy statement PPS1, 
PPS3 and PPS23; Planning Policy Guidance notes PPG3, PPG13 and PPG25; 

Policies S1, S2 and H2 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan Deposit Draft and 
Policies H6, H11, REC3 and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan and the 

adopted Interim Housing Policy, and although the issues related to highway 
safety and flood risk are material considerations but are not sufficient in 
this case to indicate against the proposal and to outweigh the policies 

referred to above, it be deferred for the Acting Development Control 
Services Manager to determine, after consultation with the Chairman and 

Vice-Chairman, subject to the applicants entering into a Section 106 
Agreement in respect of affordable housing contributions toward 
improvements to links to the town centre and public open space provision 

 



6 

and subject also to appropriate conditions.    
 

SU.5 

 

Application ref: S06/0756/12 
 
Description: Demolition of existing factory unit and construction of 1 

foodstore, 4 non-food retail units with service yard and 
associated car parking 

 
Location:  Land off South Road, Bourne 
 

Decision:  Deferred 
 

Noting comments made during the public speaking session from:- 
 
 Mr John Hargreaves – agent for the applicants 

 
together with an objection for Bourne Town Council, comments from the 

Archaeological Consultant and the Health and Safety Executive, no 
objection from the Environment Agency or the Highway Authority and 

objections from EMRA and EMDA, together with letters and emails of 
objection from nearby residents, a lengthy statement in support from the 
applicants and further comments from nearby residents, together with 

comments made by Members at the meeting. 
 

It was proposed and seconded that, as the proposal was in accordance with 
National and Local Policies as set out in Planning Policy Guidance Notes 
PPS1, PP26 and RSS8, policies S1 and E1 of the Lincolnshire County 

Structure Plan and Policy S5 of the South Kesteven Local Plan and there are 
no material considerations that indicate against the proposal, it be deferred 

for the Acting Development Control Services Manager to determine, after 
consultation with The Chairman and Vice-Chairman, subject to the 
completion of a Section 106 Agreement relating to the closure of the 

Manning Road Store and the Secretary of State not wishing to call in the 
application, and subject to also to appropriate conditions. 

 
 
SU.6 

 

Application ref: S06/0832/69 

 
Description:  Construction of 11 townhouses 
 

Location:  2A, Radcliffe Road, Stamford 
 

Decision:  Deferred 
 
Noting comments made during the public speaking session from:- 

 
Mr Banks – co-owner of the neighbouring property – objecting 

 

 



7 

together  with comments from Stamford Town Council, no objection from 
the Environment Agency, comments from the Highway Authority and 

Community Archaeologist, representations from nearby residents, 
submissions in support from the applicant, and  comments made by 

Members at  the meeting for a site inspection to establish the likely effect 
of the proposal on the neighbouring building to the west, and on traffic flow 
resulting from the development. 

 
SU.7 

 

Application ref: S06/1070/56 
 

Description:  Construction of seven dwellings 
 

Location:  Hawthorne House, 35, Towngate West, Market Deeping 
 
Decision:  Approved 

 
Noting report of site inspection together with no objection from the 

Highway Authority, comments from the Community Archaeologist, Welland 
and Deepings Internal Drainage Board and Arboriculturailist and Landscape 

Officer, an objection from the Town Council and representations from 
nearby properties, together with detailed submissions in support from the 
applicants, and comments made by Members at the meeting. 

 
It was proposed and seconded that, as the proposal was in accordance with 

the requirements of National Planning Policy Guidance and the 
requirements of the Adopted South Kesteven Local Plan 1995, and 
notwithstanding the objections to the proposed development which are not 

considered to be sufficient to outweigh the policies referred to the above, it 
be approved subject to the following conditions:-  

 
1. Application for approval of reserved matters must be made not 

later than the expiration of three years beginning with the 

date of this permission, and the development must be begun 
not later than the expiration of two years from the final 

approval of the reserved matters, or, in the case of approval 
on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to 
be approved. 

2. The following matters are reserved for subsequent approval by 
the District Planning Authority and no development shall be 

carried out until these matters have been approved, viz. 
detailed drawings to an appropriate scale, showing the design 
and external appearance of the building(s) including 

particulars of the materials to be used for external walls and 
roofs. 

3. When application is made for the approval of 'reserved 
matters', details including location and the means of disposal 
of surface water and foul drainage shall be submitted to and 

approved by the District Planning Authority and no buildings 
shall be occupied until the APPROVED drainage works have 

 



8 

been provided. 

4. This consent relates to the application as amended by site 

layout plan received on 24 August 2006.  The maximum 
number of dwellings constructed on the site shall be seven. 

5. When the application is made for approval of the 'reserved 
matters' that application shall show details of the 
arrangements for the 

parking/turning/manoeuvring/loading/unloading of vehicles 
within the site.  These arrangements shall be provided before 

the building is occupied and shall be kept permanently free for 
such use at all times thereafter. 

6. No development shall take place before the detailed design of 

the arrangements for surface water drainage has been agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority and no building shall 

be occupied before it is connected to the agreed drainage 
system. 

7. The minimum width of the access shall be 4.5 metres. 

8. No development shall take place until there has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning 

Authority a plan showing the exact location, species and 
spread of all trees and hedges on the site and those proposed 

to be felled or uprooted during building operations together 
with measures for their protection in the course of 
development. 

9. When application is made to the District Planning Authority for 
approval of the 'reserved 'matters', that application shall be 

accompanied by a scheme of landscaping and tree planting 
(indicating inter alia, the number, species, heights on planting 
and positions of all the trees) in respect of the land to which 

that application relates; and such scheme shall require the 
approval of the District Planning Authority before any 

development is commenced. Such scheme as may be agreed 
shall be undertaken in the first planting season following the 
occupation of the buildings or the completion of the 

development, whichever is the sooner; and any trees or plants 
which within a period of five years from the completion of the 

development die, are removed or become seriously damaged 
or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of similar size and species, unless the District Planning 

Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

10.No development shall take place until there has been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, materials and 
type of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary 

treatment shall be completed before the building(s) are 
occupied, or in accordance with a timetable agreed in writing 

with the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with approved details.  The details 
submitted to comply with this condition shall show the 

 



9 

retention of the existing boundary wall running along the 
eastern side of the site, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 

the local planning authority.  

11.No building on plots 2 to 6 of the development hereby 

approved shall exceed 1½ storeys in height. 

 

(The meeting adjourned from 3.36pm to 3.56pm) 
 
SU.9 

 

Application ref: S06/1128/25 

 
Description:  Construction of 40 dwellings & ancillary works 
 

Location: Land At Former Concrete Works, Spalding Road, 
Deeping St. James 

 
Decision:  Deferred 
 

Noting comments from the Parish Council, Community Archaeologist, 
Housing Partnership and Project Officer, Primary Care Trust and LCC 

Education, no objection from the Highway Authority, Environment Agency 
or Welland and Deepings Internal Drainage Board and submissions in 

support from the applicants, together with comments made by Members at 
the meeting. 
 

It was proposed and seconded that as the proposal was in accordance with 
National and Local Policies as set out in Planning Policy Guidance Notes 3, 

PPS1 and RS8, Policies H6, EN1 and REC3 of the South Kesteven Local Plan 
and there are no material considerations that indicate against the proposal, 
it be deferred for the Acting Development Control Services Manager to 

determine, after consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, 
subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement in relation to 

affordable housing and contributions to health and education provision, and 
subject to also to appropriate conditions. 
 

SU.8 

 

Application ref: S06/1107/12 
 
Description:  Construction of medical centre 

 
Location:  Southfield Business Park, South Road, Bourne 

 
Decision:  Deferred 
 

Noting comments made during the public speaking session from:- 
 

 Mr R Edwards – agent for the applicants  
 
together with no objection from Bourne Town Council or the Environment 

 



10 

Agency, comments from the Highway Authority, Health and Safety 
Executive, Community Archaeologist and National Grid, together with two 

representations from Doctors’ Practices and letters of support from nearby 
residents, together with submissions in support from the applicants, and 

comments made by Members at the meeting. 
 
It was proposed and seconded that, as the proposal was in accordance with 

National and Local Policies as set out in Planning Policy Statement 1 and 6, 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 4, Regional Spatial Strategy 8 and Policy S1 

of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan, and although the issue relating to 
sustainability is a material consideration but is not sufficient in this case to 
indicate against the proposal and to outweigh the policies above, it be 

deferred for the Acting Development Control Services Manager to 
determine, after consultation with the Chairman and Vice-chairman, subject 

to no adverse observations from the Highway Authority, and subject to 
appropriate conditions.  
 

SU.10 

 

Application ref: S06/1154/12 
 

Description: Bourne Community Health Scheme inc 21 Key Worker 
Apartments 

 

Location:  Southfield Business Park, South Road, Bourne 
 

Decision:  Deferred 
 
Pending receipt of the observations of the Health and Safety Executive and 

Highway Authority.   
 

 
NR.1 

 

Application ref: S06/0487/63 
 

Description:  50m tall steel meteorological mast 
 
Location:  Neslam Farm, Sempringham Fen 

 
Decision:  Approved 

 
 
Noting comments from Defence Estates, The Black Sluice Internal Drainage 

Board and objections from Pointon and Sempringham Parish Council with 
regard to the original and amended plans, a number of objections from 

nearby residents, together with two letters of support, and detailed 
information in support from the applicants, together with a verbatim reply 
from Defence Estates in relation to matters raised at the last meeting, 

together with comments made by Members at the meeting. 
 

It was proposed and seconded that as the proposal would not have an 

 



11 

adverse visual impact and was in any event only to be retained for two 
years, it be approved subject to the following conditions:- 

 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be for a limited 

period of: 
 
a) the period to obtain the necessary wind data; or 

b) two years from the date of this consent; 
 

whichever is the shorter.  The date of completion of data 
recording shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority in 
writing within 1 month of finishing. 

2. The mast and any foundations will be removed from the land 
within a period of 3 months from the date of notification of 

completion of data recording. 

 
(4.32pm – Councillor N Radley left the meeting, having declared an 

interest) 
 

NR.2 

 

Application ref: S06/1042/42 
 
Description: Change of use of agricultural land to leisure uses 

including the provision of holiday cabins, creation of 
lake, landscaping & improvement to access 

 
Location:  Pt OS 5865, King Street, Oasby 
 

Decision:  Deferred 
 

Noting comments made during the public speaking session from:- 
 

Mr M Bromidge – Vice-chairman of Heydour Parish Council – 

objecting 
 

 Mr J Sutch – Chairman of Oasby Residents Committee – objecting 
 
 Mr C Wicks – Planning Consult on behalf of Heydour Parish Council  

 
 Mr S Bate – agent for the applicant 

 
together with objections from Heydour and Welby Parish Councils, 
comments from Highway Authority, Community Archaeologist and 

Environment Agency, an objection from the Campaign to Protect Rural 
England, detailed submissions in support from the applicant and a 

significant number of letters of objection from nearby residents, together 
with comments from Members at the meeting. 
 

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that further consideration be 
deferred for a site inspection to ascertain the likely impact of the proposal 

 



12 

on the surrounding rural area. 
 

(4.47pm – Councillor N Radley returned to the meeting) 
  

752. CHANGES TO THE DELEGATION SCHEME AND TERMINATION OF THE 

PLANNING PANEL 

  
Decision:- 

 

That the proposals submitted from the Chairman of Committee (and as 
attached to these minutes as an appendix) be agreed for transmission to 

the Constitution and Accounts Committee. 
 

The Chairman reminded Members that the Constitution and Accounts 
Committee, as part of its discussions on the Planning Panel situation had 
asked the Committee to look at the issue and report to that Committee 

with recommendations on a viable way forward.  He asked Members for 
their views. 

 
A Member commented that in the past when the then Planning Committee 
had been faced with a long agenda, it was clear that earlier applications on 

the agenda had been given more time than those towards the end of the 
agenda.  Meetings frequently finished at 7.00pm, or later, with the result 

that Members were tired and frequently Councillors had left for other 
commitments.  As a result, consideration had been given, some three years 
ago, to the commencement of the Planning Panels. 

 
He suggested that maybe the time was now right to give further 

consideration to alternatives, possibly more frequent cycles of meetings for 
the Development Control Committee.  It was accepted that a two weekly 

cycle of meetings would result in difficulties with dispatch of agendas and 
he put forward a suggestion for consideration which, briefly, was that an 
agenda would be sent in on a particular date but in two parts, Part 1 for 

consideration at a meeting to be held at a suitable distance from the 
dispatch date and Part 2 be held at a later date.  The distance between 

these two meetings called by one agenda could be the subject of 
discussion. 
 

Another Councillor suggested that all 58 Members should play a part and he 
put forward a suggestion that the district be divided into five areas on a 

roughly regional basis so that all Councillors could play a part in the 
decision making process to enable the workload to be spread. 
 

(4.52pm – Councillor Turner left the meeting) 
 

A Member commented that Members of the Development Control 
Committee frequently had other commitments, which would inevitably clash 
with the end of a long Committee meeting and that this would be therefore 

be a reason to try to keep meetings shorter, to enable Members to be 
present for the whole meeting.  She accepted that the Planning Panel had 

been cancelled because of the lack of transparency issue, but queried 
whether suggested extended delegation was any different.  It was 

 



13 

suggested that a method of overcoming this would be to allow the public to 
be present at the Panel’s Meetings.  In response, the Chairman suggested 

that the reason for the Planning Panel being terminated was the view that it 
fettered the decision of the Officers in recommending the method of 

determining particular applications.  
 
(4.56pm – Councillor Mrs Gaffigan left the meeting) 

 
(4.58pm – Councillor Mrs Gaffigan returned to the meeting) 

 
A Member commented that it seemed unlikely the number of applications 
received would slow down and he suggested that consideration be given to 

either an earlier start, or Members should accept that there would be a 
later finish.  The Officers could have a meeting to indicate their decision on 

particular applications and the Chairman and Vice-Chairman could sit in and 
observe.   
 

(5.00pm – Councillor Mrs Hurst left the meeting) 
 

(5.02pm – Councillor Mrs Hurst returned to the meeting) 
 

A lengthy discussion ensued on the suggestions made, during which the 
Chief Executive and Committee Support Officer commented on the 
workability of the suggestions made, particularly the suggestion of a two 

weekly cycle of meetings.  The suggestion in relation to area meetings was 
difficult to quantify but the difficulty of consistency of policies would apply. 

Earlier starts were possible and arrangements had been made for the 
Committee Support Officer to consult the Chairman if it seemed likely that 
an earlier start was necessary depending on the length of the agenda. 

 
Various further comments were made by Members and the Committee 

Support Officer briefly explained the history behind the former Northern 
and Southern Area Planning Sub-committees, and why they had been 
terminated in favour of one district wide committee. 

 
The Chairman of the Committee then read his suggested new scheme in 
full, following which the Chief Executive commented that it seemed 

indistinguishable from the Planning Panel Scheme.  However, if the 
Committee agreed to support it then there would be a need to report back 
to the Constitution and Accounts Committee.  A brief general discussion 

took place before the Chairman’s suggestion was proposed, seconded, put 
to the vote and agreed for transmission to the Constitution and Accounts 

Committee. 
 
On a request from a Member, the Committee Support Officer agreed to 

report further on the Northern/Southern Area Planning Committee idea 
discussed earlier in the meeting with the reasons why it had been 

discontinued.  
 
(In accordance with Council procedure rule 9, and as the meeting had 

lasted for three hours, it was agreed that the meeting continue)  

 

 



14 

 
  

753. INFORMATION RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND OTHER 

PLANNING ACTIVITIES. 

  
The Acting Development Control Services Manager submitted his report 
PLA625 listing details of applications not determined within the eight-week 

time period.  Also submitted was a list of applications dealt with under 
delegated powers.  

 

It was proposed and seconded that:-  
 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 100A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

ACT 1972, THE PUBLIC BE EXCLUDED BECAUSE OF THE 

LIKELIHOOD, IN VIEW OF THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS TO BE 

TRANSACTED, THAT IF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WERE PRESENT 

THERE WOULD BE A DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF EXEMPT 

INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 2 OF PART 1 OF 

SCHEDULE 12A OF THE ACT. 

 

This proposition was approved.   
  

754. ENFORCEMENT ACTION 

  
Decision:- 
 

That authority be given for appropriate enforcement action to be taken with 
regard to:- 

 
1. The provision of an access track at Marston Hall, Marston; 

 

2. The change of use of land to car boot sales, land adjacent 
Grange Farm, Hougham; and 

 
3. Breach of condition, rear of 37 Newton Way, Woolsthorpe by 

Colsterworth. 

 
Members considered reports PLA622 from the Enforcement Officer in 

relation to various breaches of planning control.  Full details of breaches 
were set out in the circulated report, which included a description of the 
site, the appropriate planning policy and comments from Officers in each 

case.  
 

It was proposed, seconded and agreed that appropriate enforcement action 
be taken in all three cases reported. 

  

755. CLOSE OF MEETING 

  
The meeting closed at 5.25pm 

  

 

 



- SU1 - 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM   

 
 

Development Control Committee 

5 December 2006  
 
 

NR.1 S06/1042/42 Date Received:  26-Jul-2006 
 

Applicant Mr S  Winfield Brittle Farm, Oasby, Grantham, NG323NA 

Agent Stephen Bate, The Robert Doughty Consultancy Ltd 32, High Street, 
Helpringham, Sleaford, Lincs, NG34 0RA 

Proposal Change of use of agricultural land to leisure uses including the 
provision of holiday cabins, creation of lake, landscaping & 
improvement to access 

Location Pt OS 5865, King Street, Oasby 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Heydour 
C Class Road 
Unclassified road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Area of special control for adverts 
EN3 Area of great landscape value 
Barkston/Cranwell (refuse tips only) 
Barkston/Cranwell (Yellow - exc 45.7m) 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 
EA: Flood Risk Zone 2 (New Build Only) 
EA: Flood Risk Zone 3 (New Build Only) 

 

REPORT 
 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site is located approximately 8.5 kilometres northeast of Grantham. It 
would be accessed from Kings Street which is a single track lane running north to south 
from High Dyke and the A52. 
 
The applicants’ agent has indicated in their supporting statement that the site forms part of 
Brittle Farm, a holding of approximately 27 hectares.  However, no additional land within 
the control of the applicant is shown on the submitted location plan. 
 
The surrounding landscape is predominantly flat and in agricultural use.  Although the 
application site has a difference in levels of approximately 3.5 metres.  The frontage of the 
site, adjacent King Street being higher than the rear of the site. 
 
The site benefits from a hedge along the south, east and west boundaries. 
 

Agenda Item 5 



- SU2 - 

The adjacent village of Oasby is identified as a less sustainable village by the Council’s 
Interim Housing Policy.  This is based on the facilities available at the village.  From the 
Council records the village has a public house, mobile library and local bus service.  
 
Site History 
 
There is no relevant site history. 
 
The Proposal 
 
The proposed development is in outline form with all matters reserved for subsequent 
approval except access.  The submitted site plan is therefore indicative only but 
demonstrates how 30 holiday cabins could be accommodated on the site with associated 
landscaping.  No elevational details have been submitted of the cabins as the design and 
appearance is reserved for subsequent approval. 
 
Roughly centrally within the site it is proposed to excavate a lake.  This lake has been 
designed in conjunction with Ministry of Defence advice.  It is a small linear feature and is 
not intended for fishing but as an ornamental feature.  This will avoid the possibility of 
encouraging large bird species which may be a potential danger to aircraft flying to and 
from RAF Barkston Heath. 
 
Access to the site would be via the existing field access off King Street.  It would run 
directly behind the existing hedge line and into the main application area. 
 
A footpath link is proposed from the site at the south-west corner to link up with Ancaster 
Lane and the village of Oasby. 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
 

National Policy 

 
Planning Policy Statement 7 (Sustainable Development in Rural Areas) 2004 
 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 (Transport) 
 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 21 (Tourism) 1992 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan (adopted) 
 
Policy T3 – Caravans and Chalets 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan (adopted) 
 
REC 8 – Recreational Facilities in the Open Countryside 
 
REC 11 – Touring Caravan and Camping Sites 
 
EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment 

 



- SU3 - 

 
EN2 – Development in the Countryside 
 
EN3 – Areas of Great Landscape Value 
 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Councillor Stokes has requested that the application be determined at committee as the 
application is for a new venture on agricultural land. 
 
Heydour Parish Council:  A summary of the main concerns received by parish council are 
listed below: 
 
1. How will the surface water and sewage be dealt with? 
2. Are the cabins for rental or short term lease? 
3. Will the accommodation be restricted to families? 

4. Very large development sited in the open countryside on the high ground in close 
proximity to a small conservation village. 
5. No shop in Oasby nor the surrounding villages. 
6. Detrimental effect on character and visual amenity of the area. 
7. 30 cabins at full occupancy would almost double the population of Oasby. 
8. No details of surface water/sewage disposal have been provided. 
9. Increase in volume of traffic on the surrounding road network would present a 
potential road safety problem. 
10. Noise and disturbance to residents.  It is understood that this kind of problem has 
arisen at Woodland Water 

11. Proposal does not satisfy criteria in Lincolnshire Structure Plan and South Kesteven 
Local Plan. 

12. No traffic survey has been produced. 
13. Whilst the passing bays are an improvement. 

14. There have been a great number of accidents at Oasby Mill Cross roads over recent 
years. 

15. Whilst the passing bays are an improvement it is not considered they address the 
additional traffic. 

 
Welby Parish Council:  A summary of the main concerns are listed below: 
 
1. Although the proposals may not affect our village directly we feel that the 

repercussions will have a detrimental effect upon our area. 
2. Impact on ‘drive through’ traffic and highway relevant.  They are only built for local 
needs. 

 
Local Highway Authority:  Requests refusal – see reason 3 below. 
 
Campaign to Protect Rural England:  CPRE Lincolnshire objects to the development on the 
following grounds: 
 

1. The development would represent a visual intrusion by reason of the number and 
forms of leisure developments proposed in an area of extremely pleasant and tranquil 
countryside. 

 



- SU4 - 

2. The proposals cannot reasonably be said to be sustainable in such a remote rural 
location well away from established centres of population. It takes agricultural land which is 
not used for any other purpose at present. It is not linked to any existing or man made 
feature, such as a former gravel working, which might give some credence to claim for 
some types of leisure use. 
3. It would result in all persons visiting the site having to travel by private car or van. 
This would be contrary to national guidance seeking to reduce the need to travel 
unnecessarily by private vehicles. There is no public transport service which might help to 
reduce such travel. 
4. The road network in the area is poor and the village is served by narrow lanes. 
Despite the provision of passing bays. It is nevertheless likely that roadside verges will be 
churned up to the detriment off the appearance of the village and its surroundings. 

 
Community Archaeologist::  No development shall take place until a programme of 
archaeological works has been secured. 
 
Environment Agency: 
 
We note that foul water from the development is not proposed to go to the mains sewer network.  

No details have been provided demonstrating the proposed means of foul water, sewage 
and trade effluent disposal.  The Environment Agency therefore object to the proposed 
development subject to the submission of these details.  This is considered necessary to 
prevent the contamination of controlled waters and to ensure that the development is 
carried out in accordance with DETR Circular 03/99. 

 
Flood Risk 
 
I can confirm that we have received a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) submitted to 
support this application. We consider that the details in the FRA have been 
undertaken in line with the fluvial main river aspect of flood risk guidance, and these 
are appropriate for the scale and nature of the proposed development. 
 
We recommend that a condition securing compliance with the FRA is appropriate.    
 

Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures.  
Objections have been received from the following: 
 
1. The Old Forge, Aisby. 
2. 81 Village Street, Oasby. 
3. Quarry Farm, Ancaster. 
4. Foxdale, Oasby. 
5. The Old School, Heydour. 
6. Eight Gables, Village Street, Oasby. 
7. Corner Cottage, 76 Village Street. 
8. Lincoln House, Village Street, Oasby. 
9. Gilberts Fuchsias & Fishing, Ancaster Road, Oasby. 
10. Woodbine Cottage, Oasby. 
11. Aisby Manor, Aisby. 
12. Goose Barn Lodge, Aisby. 

 



- SU5 - 

13. Ben Lyte, Caythorpe. 
14. Woodland Waters Ltd, Willoughby Road, Ancaster. 
15. North Barn, Oasby. 
16. Greenacres, Ancaster Lane, Oasby. 
17. Folly Farm Cottage, Oasby. 
18. Badger’s End, Oasby Farm, Oasby. 
19. Wyvernel, village Street, Oasby. 
20. Lime Cottage, Oasby. 
21. Stone Manor, Mill Lane, Oasby. 
22. The Barn, Oasby. 
23. Clavden House, Oasby. 
24. The Greenway, Oasby. 
25. Cornerways, Mill Lane, Oasby. 
26. Greyleas, Ancaster Lane, Oasby. 
27. Maryland, Oasby. 
28. Oasby Lodge, Oasby. 
29. The Pinomar, Mill Lane, Oasby. 
30. South Barn, Oasby. 
31. Wayside Cottage, Oasby. 
32. Holly Hocks, Mill Lane, Oasby. 
33. 81 Village Street, Oasby. 
34. 81 Oasby. 
35. Woolfox Cottage, 87 Village Street, Oasby. 
36. 83 Village Street, Oasby. 
37. 80 Village Street, Oasby. 
38. Holly House, Village Street, Oasby. 
39. Holly Cottage, 1 Jubilee Row, Aisby. 
40. Nightingale House, Top Farm, Green Lane, Aisby. 
41. Wellington House, Aisby. 
42. Stoneycroft, Aisby. 
43. Sycamore House, Aisby. 
44. Briar Lodge, Aisby. 
45. Rose Cottage, 63 Aisby. 
46. Whitefield Cottage, 2 Jubilee Row, Aisby. 
47. Heydour Prior, Heydour. 
48. 2 Jubilee Row, Aisby. 
49. North Barn, Aisby. 
50. 1 Magpie Cottage, Ancaster. 
51. Manor Farmhouse, Oasby. 
52. 63 Green Lane, Aisby. 
53. The Old Forge, Aisby. 
54. Southings House, Aisby. 
55. the School House, Heydour. 
56. 37 Church Leas Cottage, Heydour. 
57. 8 The Oaks, Cambridge. 
58. The Rowans, Village Street, Oasby. 
59. High Meadow, Ancaster Lane, Oasby. 
60. Willow Cottage, Ancaster Lane, Oasby. 
61. Orchard Way, Mill Lane, Oasby. 
62. Houblon Cottage, Ancaster Lane, Oasby. 

 



- SU6 - 

63. 85 Village Street, Oasby. 
64. Old Barn Cottage, Oasby. 
65. Wheelwrights Cottage, 86 Oasby. 
66. Highclere, Ancaster Lane, Oasby. 
67. Eight Gables, Oasby. 
68. Church View, Oasby. 
69. Oasby House, Oasby. 
70. Oasby Manor, Oasby. 
 
A summary of their main concerns are listed below. 
 

1. Contrary to current government guidance, Structure Plan and Local Plan policy. 

2. Impact on the character and appearance of the area. 
3. Highway safety and impact on the existing highway network and access. 
4. Impact on landscape. 
5. Impact on archaeology of the area. 
6. Lack of tourism need. 
7. Design is out of keeping with character of the area. 
8. Proposal is not closely related to any major rural or countryside recreational activity. 
9. Detrimental impact on the conservation area of Oasby. 
10. There are no attractions or amenities in Oasby village. 
11. Oasby is not a service centre. 
12. Site is in the open countryside and should be protected. 
13. Impact on the drainage of the surrounding area. 
14. The proposal would double the population of Oasby and would not be sustainable. 
15. The land is good quality agricultural land which is set aside. 
16. The economic viability of the proposal is not justified. 
17. Would result in increase in crime and disorder. 
18. No local leisure facilities. 

19. Isolated location is fundamentally contrary to government principles of reducing 
unnecessary pollution. 

20. There is a leisure site at Ancaster nearby. 
21. Impact on existing established businesses. 
22. Only employment creation is the manager of the site. 
23. Pollution to neighbouring fishing lakes. 
24. Impact on SSSI. 
25. Woodland Waters intends to expand to meet demand. 
26. Light pollution. 
27. the applicant is not a farmer so the development cannot be described as farm 

diversification. 
28. Increase in litter. 
29. May result in flooding of the village. 
30. Increase in noise and disturbance. 
31. The proposed footpath exits onto a narrow lane which has no footpath. 
32. Potential for flooding. 
33. Lack of public transport. 
34. If developed the area would never revert to farmland. 
35. There is only a pub in the village.  No shop. 
36. Log cabins are not suited to the area and would be incongruous. 
37. Would set a precedent for similar development. 

 



- SU7 - 

38. This is not a tourist facility it is an extensive site for temporary housing. 
39. Visual impact. 
40. Thinly veiled application for ‘affordable housing’. 
41. Pollution of neighbouring fish stocks. 
42. Impact of construction traffic. 
 
Applicants Submission 
 
A summary of a letter supporting the development from the applicant’s agent is listed 
below: 
 
“Firstly, with respect to the drainage and sewerage requirements.  As you will be aware, this is an 

outline application.  It is likely that foul disposal would be by way of a sewage treatment 
plant.  Details of surface water runoff attenuation and sustainable drainage are included in 
the submitted Flood Risk Assessment.  We see no reason why these matters cannot be 
dealt with by way of condition, at the reserved matters stage.  We are unclear as to what 
trade effluent the Environment Agency may be referring to.  There will be no industrial 
processes on site.  Refuse disposal will be through the District Council’s normal services. 

 
Secondly, with respect to Structure Plan Policy T3, this is important, but is not the 
key to this proposal.  Local Plan Policy REC8 is similarly relevant but forms part of 
an outdated Plan.  The proposal therefore needs to be considered in the round, 
alongside all government advice and Development Plan Policy.  Appropriate weight 
should be given to the potential economic benefits of the proposal in facilitating 
tourism and increasing visitor numbers to the area, which outweigh the minimal 
environmental impact. 
 
Structure Plan Policy T3 accepts that, “small scale sites for holiday [cabins] will 
normally be permitted”.  The proposal will assist in fostering the further development 
of tourism and recreation in the area, whilst the site location and its accessibility 
provide opportunities for short breaks and longer stay holidays. 
 
The inclusion of a small lake within the proposal is not intended to provide 
justification by itself for the development.  The proposal provides accommodation in 
a quiet rural location, to enable the pursuit of countryside leisure activities, such as 
walking, cycling, fishing, horse riding, clay pigeon shooting, bird watching, 
gliding/flying etc.  All of which are available nearby.  Furthermore, the location is 
accessible to other significant tourist facilities.  A list of the location of such 
countryside leisure facilities is provided at Appendix A of our Development 
Appraisal.  Importantly, the application site lies only a short distance from two 
significant tourist attractions, Ancaster Karting and Paintball and Woodland Waters. 
 
With respect to the perceived prominence of the proposal, the site is a distance from 
adjacent roads, being set back one field from the nearest road, and already has well 
established boundary vegetation.  There are very few public vantage points and 
these offer distance views of the site.  The surrounding land is not flat and 
featureless and he topography helps to screen the site.  The proposed layout makes 
use of the natural contours and tree screening.  The proposed cabins will not be 
prominent structures and will set comfortably within the existing landscape 

 



- SU8 - 

framework and will be accompanied with a significant and sensitive planting 
scheme. 
 
The fact that a need for good holiday accommodation has been demonstrated 
means that the diversification, economic and tourism benefits of the proposal should 
be given sufficient weight to overcome any concerns that this may not be the 
“correct location for the development”. 
 
This application was submitted, with a substantial application fee, on the basis of 
favourable officer advice.  In fact, the scheme was substantially reduced in scale to 
take account of officer comments.  The Council’s planning officer responded, in 
December 2005 that “I remain of the opinion that there is merit in the proposed 
scheme and I think the alterations to your supporting statement go some way to 
addressing the issues raised by Policy T3 of the Structure Plan.  I think that such a 
proposal would receive officer support if submitted but I cannot foresee the 
comments of nearby residents or the Parish Council based on such a proposal.  I 
would hope that, if it is considered that the proposal would be very much one of 
those ‘on balance’ applications but, as the majority of the Policy advice can be 
addressed, I would hope that such an application could be approved.” 
 
We accept that officer advice is always without prejudice and we would accept that 
any application can be subject to negative representations made by consultees, 
residents and ultimately the Planning Committee.  However we would appreciate a 
certain amount of consistency amongst officers. 
 
We trust that you will be able to take on board these comments when making your 
recommendation to the Planning Committee.  We would urge you to acknowledge 
that the economic and tourism benefits of the proposal outweigh the minimal 
environmental impact and to support this proposal.” 
 

Conclusions 
 
The proposal relates the principal of development of an area of open countryside 
approximately 3.9 hectares for the erection of holiday cabins associated landscaping and 
creation of a lake. 
 
The main issue relating to this development is its compatibility with relevant government 
guidance and development plan policy. 
 
The current government guidance contained in Planning Policy PPS7 Sustainable 
Development in Rural Areas highlights the issues that should be considered when 
determining development proposals for static holiday and touring caravan parks and 
holiday chalet developments. 
 
Planning Authorities should: 
 
“In considering planning policies and development proposals for static holiday and touring caravan 

parks and holiday chalet developments, planning authorities should: 

 

 



- SU9 - 

i) carefully weight the objective of providing adequate facilities and sites with the need 
to protect landscapes and environmentally sensitive sites, and examine the scope 
for relocating any existing, visually or environmentally-intrusive sites away from 
sensitive areas, or for relocation away from sites prone to flooding or coastal 
erosion; 

ii) where appropriate (e.g. in popular holiday areas), set out policies in LDDs on 
the provision of new holiday and touring caravan sites and chalet 
developments, and on the expansion and improvement of existing sites and 
developments (e.g. to improve layouts and provide better landscaping); and 

iii) ensure that new or expanded sites are not prominent in the landscape and 
that any visual intrusion is minimised by effective, high-quality screening. 

 
Local planning authorities should support the provision of other forms of self-catering holiday 

accommodation in rural areas where this would accord with sustainable development 
objectives.  The re-use and conversion of existing non-residential buildings for this purpose 
may have added benefits, e.g. as a farm diversification scheme. 

 
Additionally, policy T3 of the adopted Lincolnshire Structure Plan states: 
 

Provision will be made for small scale static holiday caravan and chalet facilities 
provided that a number of criteria are met. Which included: 
 
They are associated with a significant tourist or recreation facility within the locality. 
 
There is satisfactory vehicular access and the existing landscape character and 
visual amenity are respected and agricultural, nature conservation and heritage 
interests safeguarded. 

 
Policy REC11 if the adopted South Kesteven Local Plan states that planning permission for 
tourist camping and caravan sites in the open countryside will normally only be granted 
where the development is closely associated with existing or proposed major countryside 
recreational and tourist attractions. 
 
Additionally, visual amenity, potential conflict with the needs of agriculture, forestry and 
other environmental interests must be taken into account and satisfactory access, parking 
and service facilities are available. 
 
Whilst the proposal does contain a lake it is an ornamental feature only. It is not intended 
for fishing. This avoids the potential problem of encouraging large bird species and the 
danger to flying aircraft at RAF Barkston Heath. 
 
Without any specific countryside or recreational/tourist attraction the development would be 
reliant upon: 
 
“... the pursuit of countryside leisure activities, such as walking, cycling, fishing, horse riding, clay 

pigeon shooting, bird watching, gliding/flying etc.” 

 
The future occupiers of the proposed units would therefore be reliant upon the motor 
vehicle to travel to elsewhere to existing tourist/recreational facilities or be dependent upon 
the informal recreational activities that can take place in any part of the open countryside. 
Additionally, as the neighbouring village, Oasby, is identified in the Council’s Interim 

 



- SU10 - 

Housing Policy as a less sustainable village the occupiers of the proposed development 
would again be required to travel to other settlements for essential facilities and services. 
This is considered contrary to sustainable development objectives.    
 
The site does benefit from existing boundary screening on three sides in addition to trees 
on the eastern boundary of the site. However, the scheme would be dependent upon 
significant proposed planting and screening. This would take a considerable period of time 
to become established. 
 
Notwithstanding the existing and proposed screening, it is considered that the proposal 
would result in significant built form in the open countryside to the detriment of reasonable 
visual amenity. Particularly. as the area is protected by policy EN3 of the adopted South 
Kesteven Local Plan. It is accepted that this policy supports recreation and tourism 
development. But with certain criteria. It should not be at the expense visual amenity. The 
application site is somewhat discreet from Oasby and would be visible when approaching 
by road from the north.   
 
It is accepted that tourism has long been an important component of the Lincolnshire 
economy (particularly along the holiday coast, Lincoln, and other historic centres). 
However, this should not be at the expense of overarching objectives of sustainability and 
protection of the natural environment. 
 
In light of the above comments it is recommended that planning permission be refused. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Refused for the following reason(s) 
 

 

1. The proposed development would not be associated with any significant tourist or 
recreational facilities/attractions in the locality.  Additionally the adjacent settlement 
of Oasby is defined as a less sustainable village (Interim Housing Policy).  The 
occupiers of the proposed development would therefore be reliant upon trips by 
motor vehicle to surrounding settlements for essential facilities and access to 
recreational/tourist attractions.   

As such the proposed development is considered to be unsustainable and contrary to Planning 
Policy Statement PPS7, PPG13 - Transport, Policy T3 of the adopted Lincolnshire Structure 
Plan and Policy REC11 of the adopted South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 

2. It is considered that the proposed development, notwithstanding the existing and 
proposed screening would result in a visually prominent and undesirable built form 
in the open countryside unrelated to the settlement of Oasby.  As such the 
development would be detrimental to visual amenity and would have a detrimental 
impact on the character of this area of great landscape value. 

Accordingly, the proposed development is considered contrary to Policies EN2 and 
EN3 of the adopted South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 



- SU11 - 

3. The application and plans submitted are inadequate in terms of details supplied.  
Precise details of the access or scheme details showing the proposed highway 
improvement works as suggested in the report are required. 

This lack of information makes it difficult for the highway to assess this application and would be 
detrimental to highway safety. 

 
 

 
This application was deferred at the last Committee to allow members to undertake a site visit. 

 
Due to an administrative error the neighbour representations were omitted from the original report 
and these have now been added to this report. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 

 



- SU12 - 

 
NR.2 S06/1365/55 Date Received:  28-Sep-2006 

 

Applicant Ablehomes Ltd 4, Castlegate, Newark, Notts, NG24 1AX 

Agent  

Proposal Residential development of four houses and garage including 
replacement garage to 'Farbrooke' 

Location 17, Main Road, Long Bennington 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Long Bennington 
C Class Road 
Unclassified road 
Area of special control for adverts 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Lincs 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The site is located on the west side of Main Street and wraps around the existing property 
of Farbrooke (No. 17), which fronts Main Street.  To the north of the site are properties 
fronting Vicarage Lane.  Immediately south of the site is a new property of 15 Main Road 
and to the west of the site is a parcel of overgrown land, on which planning permission has 
been refused for the development. 
 
The site is a level parcel of land that is currently used as domestic garden to Farbrooke.  A 
single, large tree that is central to the site, along with some smaller specimens, would be 
removed to make way for the proposed development. 
 
Site History 
 
Outline planning permission was granted for the erection of a single dwelling on the site on 
11 August 2005, under application S05/0860/55.  This outline approval was for a slightly 
smaller site than that now proposed, as the land to the frontage of 15 Main Road was not 
included in the overall site. 
 
Planning permission exists for the erection of 2 bungalows on the land to the west of the 
application site under application SK.55/1288/84.  Approval was gained for these 
properties and the development was commenced by the construction of groundworks and 
drainage.  More recently approval was given on 28 November 2005 for the erection of 3 
bungalows on the same site. 
 
To the west of the site is a parcel of land that has been the subject of three planning 
appeals (APP/E2530/A/05/1186103, 05/11888281 and 1188280). 
 
Planning permission was granted for the erection of three bungalows on the land to the 
west (S05/1108) on 28 November 2005. 
 

 



- SU13 - 

Planning permission was refused for the erection of four dwellings and garages and 
replacement garage to Farbrooke – S06/0622.  This application is currently under appeal. 
 
The Proposal 
 
Consent is sought for the retention of Farbrooke and the erection of 4 new dwellings within 
its garden area.  Access into the site would be gained via a private drive directly off Main 
Road.  Part of the existing frontage garden to 15 Main Road is included within the site area 
to allow for a frontage dwelling to Main Road. 
 
Two garage blocks would be provided to serve plots 1, 2, 4 and Farbrooke itself, with plot 4 
having an integral garage.  The proposed dwellings are all 2-storey and are spaced around 
a central courtyard/turning area.  The dwellings have been designed in order to avoid any 
overlooking where possible and to provide suitable garden areas. 
 
This application is a resubmission of planning application S06/0622 which was refused 
planning permission on 28 April 2006. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
National Guidance 
 
PPG3 – Housing.  The development would be in accordance with this national planning 
guidance, as it would form a brownfield development within a Local Service Centre. 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Policy H2 – Seeks the provision of a percentage of new housing on previously developed 
land. 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy H6 – Allows for development that (inter alia) has no resultant impact on the form, 
character and appearance of the settlement. 
 
Policy EN1 – Allows for development that (inter alia) reflects the general character of the 
area through layout, siting, design and materials. 
 
Interim Housing Policy – Identifies Long Bennington Village as a ‘Local Service Centre’ 
where new residential proposals are only permitted where they are proposed on a 
previously developed (brownfield) site. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council:  Any comments will be reported verbally. 
 
Local Highway Authority:  Requests 4 conditions and 2 Notes to Applicant on any approval. 
 
Community Archaeologist:  No objections. 
 

 



- SU14 - 

Environment Agency:  Any comments will be reported verbally. 
 
Asset & Facilities Management:  All surface water drainage must be independent of the 
existing systems, which are at capacity and prone to flooding. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and any 
comments received will be reported verbally. 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
The applicant has submitted a comprehensive Design and Access Statement with the 
application, and makes particular reference to the appeal Inspector’s decision in relation to 
the site to the west accessed off Vicarage Lane. 
 
Conclusions 
 
Long Bennington is classed as a Local Service Centre where new residential development 
can be sustained if planning proposals seek to develop on brownfield sites.  This land is 
classed as previously  developed and does not extend the built form of the village out into 
the open countryside.  The site can be developed with properties of similar height to those 
surrounding and to a design that would avoid any potential overlooking or loss of privacy.  
The proposal conforms to national planning guidance and the current development plan 
and, subject to the imposition of relevant conditions, forms an acceptable development. 
 
Members should be aware of the recent appeal decisions on the land adjacent to the 
application site.  All three appeals were allowed.  The main thrust of the Inspectors 
decision was that the developments were in keeping with the surrounding area, and would 
not result any significant loss of residential amenity to neighbouring occupiers. 
 
The application before you is for a comparable form of development. 
 
Summary of reason(s) for approval 
 

The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Guidance note(s) PPG3, policy H2 of the Lincolnshire County Structure Plan, policies H6 
and EN of the South Kesteven Local Plan and Interim Housing Policy.  There are no 
material considerations that indicate against the proposal though condition(s) have been 
attached. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. Samples of the materials to be used for all external walls and roofs shall be 
submitted to the District Planning Authority before any development to which this 
permission relates is commenced and only such materials as may be approved in 
writing by the authority shall be used in the development. 

 



- SU15 - 

3. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the District Planning Authority a plan showing the exact location, species 
and spread of all trees and hedges on the site and those proposed to be felled or 
uprooted during building operations together with measures for their protection in 
the course of development. 

4. The screen walls shown on the submitted plan shall be erected at the same time as 
the associated drawings. 

5. Before any development is commenced, details including location and means of 
disposal of surface water and foul drainage shall be submitted to and approved by 
the District Planning Authority, and no building shall be occupied until the drainage 
works have been provided. 

6. The arrangements shown on the approved plan 1/2/2006 dated 28 September 2006 
for the parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all times 
when the premises are in use. 

7. Prior to any of the buildings being occupied, the private drive shall be completed in 
accordance with the details shown on drawing number 1/2/2006 dated 28 
September 2006.  (Please note that this road is a private road and will not be 
adopted as a highway maintainable at the public expense (under the Highways Act 
1980) and as such the liability for maintenance rests with the frontagers). 

8. No development shall take place before the detailed design of the arrangements for 
surface water drainage has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and no building shall be occupied before it is connected to the agreed drainage 
system. 

9. The minimum width of the access shall be 4.1 metres. 

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

2. These details have not been submitted and the District Planning Authority wish to 
ensure that the colour and type of materials to be used harmonise with the 
surrounding development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with 
Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

3. These features make an important contribution to the appearance of the area.  Their 
retention will maintain the appearance of the area and help assimilate the 
development with its surroundings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

4. To provide a satisfactory appearance to this residential estate by screening rear 
gardens from public view and in the interests of the privacy and amenity of the 
occupants of the proposed dwellings and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the 
South Kesteven Local Plan. 

5. The application was submitted in outline and no such details have been submitted 
and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 



- SU16 - 

6. To allow vehicles to enter and leave the highway in a forward gear in the interests of 
highway safety, and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

7. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policy H6 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

8. To ensure that surface water run-off from the development will not adversely affect, 
by reason of flooding, the safety amenity and commerce of the residents of this site, 
and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

9. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policy H6 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. Prior to the commencement of any of the access works within the public highway, 
please contact the Divisional Highways Manager (Lincolnshire County Council) on 
01522 782070 for appropriate specification and construction information. 

2. This road is a private drive and will not be adopted as Highway Maintainable at the 
public expense (under the Highways Act 1980) and, as such, remains the 
responsibility of the individual property owner. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



- SU17 - 

 
NU.1 S06/1280/06 Date Received:  08-Sep-2006 

 

Applicant Ms C  Alijohari Leverett House, Gilbert Drive, Endeavour Park, Boston, 
PE21 7TQ 

Agent Ms L Cooper - L M C Architect 11, Main Street, Lyddington, Rutland, LE15 
9LR 

Proposal Development of 24 affordable dwellings 

Location Land Off Walkers Way, Barrowby 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Barrowby 
Unclassified road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Area of special control for adverts 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Barkston/Cranwell (refuse tips only) 
Drainage - Lincs 

 
REPORT 
 

The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The application site is a rectangular parcel of land measuring approximately 60 metres by 
100 metres.  The site is currently used as paddock.  It has an overall area of approximately 
0.563 hectares.  The site is located adjacent to Walkers Way. 
 
Site History 
 
The site has not been the subject of any recent planning applications. 
 
S06/0891 – Planning permission was refused for the erection of 24 Affordable Dwellings.  
The reasons for refusal related to encroachment into the open countryside/prevention of 
coalescence and that the affordable housing would not provide the identified tenure need. 
 
SK.92/0054 – Planning permission was granted for the erection of 14 dwellings, The Drift, 
Barrowby (adjacent the application site). 
 
The Proposal 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the erection of 24 ‘affordable houses’ on the site.  
Access into the site would be formed by extending Walkers Way to form an adoptable 
highway into the site, with associated turning features. 
 
The proposed dwellings would be sited in semi-detached blocks with associated parking 
areas around the turning area and access road.  The dwellings are a mix of two storey and 
bungalows adjacent to the existing properties on Walkers Way. 
 
A design statement forms part of the application submission.  A summary of the main 
contents of the statement are listed below. 
 

 



- SU18 - 

• This is a wholly residential scheme to provide affordable dwellings to meet a 
proven local need. 

• The adjacent land uses are residential and the site forms a natural extension to 
an earlier affordable housing scheme. 

• It is proposed to construct a total of 24 residential units on the site consisting of 
both housing and bungalows.  This represents a development density of 48 units 
to the hectare which is in compliance with the density range prescribed by PPG3. 

• The existing form of development is very much rectilinear with dwellings facing 
onto or being perpendicular to the highway.  It seems appropriate to continue this 
theme rather than advocating a more amorphous form that would be at odds with 
the existing structure. 

• In order to successfully integrate the proposed development with the existing 
dwellings on Walkers Way the use of single storey was considered essential 
where the two sites adjoin. 

• By providing adopted footpaths behind the designated car parking spaces it is 
possible to integrate strategic planting into the streetscene without the necessity 
for the local planning authority being required to take over the future 
maintenance. 

• The dwellings draw upon the local traditional vernacular cottages, with simple yet 
cohesive detailing throughout the scheme. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 
National Policy 
 
PPG3 – Housing – States that affordable housing in rural areas should be supported by a 
rural exceptions policy (see reference to the Interim Housing Policy and H8 later in this 
section), which should allow for small exception sites, solely for affordable housing on land 
within or adjoining small communities which would not otherwise be released for general 
market housing.  However, one of the main government objectives in PPG3 states that 
planning authorities should: 
 

“Provide sufficient housing land but give priority to re-using previously developed land within 
urban areas, bringing empty homes back into use and converting existing buildings, in 
preference to the development of Greenfield sites.” 

 
Paragraph 13 of PPG3 states: 
 

“Assessments of housing need which underpin local housing strategies and local plan 
policies, are matters for local authorities to undertaken in the light of their local 
circumstances.  Local planning authority should work jointly with housing departments to 
assess the range of needs for different types and sizes of housing across all tenures in their 
area.  This should include affordable housing and housing to help meet the needs of 
specific groups …” and “… Local assessments should consider not only the need for new 
housing but ways in which the existing stock might be better utilised to meet the needs of 
the community.  The Department will issue further advice to assist local authorities in 
preparing local housing need assessments.” 

 
Paragraph 56 of PPG3 seeks to ensure that the design of new developments should not be viewed 
in isolation and issues relating to design and layout must be informed by the wider context, having 

 



- SU19 - 

regard not just to the immediate neighbouring buildings but the wider context, townscape and 
landscape of the wider locality.  And in paragraph 63 the PPG states that planning authorities 
should reject poor design where decisions are supported by clear plan policies, adopted guidance 
and village design statements. 

 
PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Development – Advises on the ‘Social Cohesion and 
Inclusion’ of development schemes in paragraphs 14, 15 and 16.  The provision of 
affordable housing is of paramount concern when considering social cohesion and 
inclusion in development schemes.  However, issues of design are covered in the PPS, 
where the following is stated: 
 

“Good design ensures attractive usable, durable and adaptable places and is a key element 
in achieving sustainable development.  Good design is indivisible from good planning.” 

 
PPS7 – Sustainable Development in Rural Areas – One of the main objectives of the PPS is to 
raise the quality of life and the environment in rural areas through the promotion of (inter alia) 
inclusive and sustainable rural communities and ensuring people have decent places to live whilst 
providing a continued protection of the open countryside for the benefit of all with “… the highest 
level of protection for our most valued landscapes and environmental resources.” 

 
More importantly, in considering the promotion of more sustainable patterns of 
development, the PPS states that: 
 
Most development should be within or next to existing town and villages, however 

• Urban sprawl should be prevented, and 

• The development of greenfield should be discouraged. 
 
Paragraph 1, part (v) seeks to ensure that priority should be given to the re-use of 
previously developed sites in preference to the development of greenfield sites. 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Policy H4 – Affordable Housing Provision 
 
Lincolnshire Design Guide for Residential Areas. 

 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy H8 – Affordable Housing 
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment 
 
Policy H8 allows, in exceptional circumstances, for small site, affordable housing schemes 
to be approved within or adjoining existing settlements, subject to a number of criteria.   
These criteria relate to: 
 

• that the need for such housing cannot be accommodated in any other way; 

• that the benefits pass not only to the initial occupants but also the subsequent 
occupants by secure arrangements; 

 



- SU20 - 

• the sites must be well related to the existing form of the settlement in locations 
which would not spoil its character or landscape setting; 

• where public services and satisfactory access can be made available. 
 
Statutory Consultations 
 
Parish Council:  No objections. 
 
Local Highway Authority: 
 

The Highway Authority does not object to the proposed development.  Three conditions 
regarding highway layout and drainage should be attached to any grant of planning 
permission. 

 
Partnership and Project Officer – Housing Solutions: 

 
I confirm that the district council are working in partnership with Longhurst Housing to 
develop affordable homes in Barrowby. 

 
Longhurst Housing Group are also working in partnership with Barrowby Parish 
Council with regard to this site. 
 
I can confirm that the above application is for 24 affordable housing units to help 
fulfil local housing needs and Longhurst Housing will enter into a nomination 
agreement with South Kesteven District Council. 
 
The current registered housing needs for Barrowby are as follows: 
 
Barrowby SGUBA 
2 bedroomed bungalow = 129 (36 local connection) 
2 bedroomed house = 352 (75 local connection) 
3 bedroomed house = 121 (22 local connection) 
 

Planning Policy: 

 
This scheme has been prepared in close co-operation with the Council’s Partnership Project 
Officer (Housing Solutions) and the former Head of Policy and Economic Regeneration.  It 
represents a partnership approach between the housing provider, the District Council and 
the Parish Council and also benefits from secured Regional funding.  The applicant is a 
Registered Social Landlord (RSL) and is one of the Councils approved Partners for the 
provision and management of affordable housing.  They are the providers of a larger 
number of affordable housing units within the district and as such make a valuable 
contribution towards meeting the Councils priority of addressing affordable housing 
shortages within the district.  I consider that these factors should be relevant Material 
Considerations in the determination of this application. 
 
The application is for 24 affordable units with an appropriate mix and balance of rented and 
shared ownership units (i.e. 50:50 split of rented and shared ownership units).  The scheme 
also provides a mix of 2 and 3 bedroom houses and bungalows.  This mix of type and 
tenure is in line with the recommendations of the 2006 Housing Need Survey undertaken by 
Fordhams Research, and with the Council’s own emerging affordable housing policy 

 



- SU21 - 

contained within the consultation version of the Core Strategy and Housing and Economic 
Development Plan Documents (published for consultation in June 2006). 
 
The proposed scheme is for a greenfield site on the edge of the village of Barrowby.  The 
site is neither allocated for specific development nor is it covered by any protection policies 
in the adopted local plan.  As such the proposal would fall within the consideration of an 
“exceptions” scheme for affordable housing, therefore policy H8 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan (Adopted April 1995).  This policy allows, in exceptional circumstances, for small 
site, affordable housing schemes to be approved within or adjoining existing settlements, 
subject to a number of criteria.  I will therefore consider the proposal against the policy 
criteria. 
 
The scheme meets a proven local need: 
 
The applicant has provided a copy of the detailed village housing need survey undertaken 
by the parish council and the Community Council of Lincolnshire’s Rural Housing Enabler, 
in 2005.  This survey demonstrates a clear need for 25 affordable housing units of two and 
three bedrooms for both rent and to purchase.  This survey h as been supplemented by 
information from the Council’s own housing waiting list which reflects the level and type of 
need. 
 
The proposed scheme reflects the size and tenure mix justified by the needs survey and as 
recommended in the 2006 Housing Need Survey undertaken by Fordhams Research.  It is 
therefore in conformity with the Council’s own emerging affordable housing policy contained 
within the consultation version of the Core Strategy and Housing and Economic 
Development Plan Documents (published for consultation in June 2006). 
 
The need for such housing cannot be accommodated in any other way: 

 
I am aware that a second application also for 24 affordable units, but in a different 
part of the village is currently under consideration.  (I have also made comments on 
this other application). 
 
The level of need (25 units) has been justified by both proposals, therefore a 
decision will need to be taken as to which of the two schemes performs best in 
relation to both the policy requirements and in terms of the actual delivery of 
affordable housing in this location.  I do not believe that there is sufficient local need 
to justify both schemes as exceptions. 
 

The benefits of the scheme pass to all subsequent occupants by secure arrangements 

 
Circular 6/98 affordable housing (para 27) sets out that the involvement of a 
Registered Social Landlord is an effective way of controlling the future occupancy of 
affordable housing.  Setting out that the benefits of using RSLs is twofold: firstly 
RSLs must ensure that they have publicly available procedures for allocating 
tenancies, these must be fair and based upon local need; secondly is an RSL needs 
to dispose of its assets the disposal process will be subject to housing corporation 
controls.  Thus providing a high degree of control over the future occupancy of such 
housing. 
 
The applicant Longhurst Housing is a RSL and is one of the Council’s approved 
Partners.  As such I am confident that the benefits of this scheme will pass to 

 



- SU22 - 

subsequent occupants.  However in accordance with both the requirements of policy 
H8 and the advice of Circular 6/98 the Council would need to ensure that an 
appropriate legal obligation were entered into.  (Paragraph 33(b) of the circular 
provides appropriate guidance on this matter). 
 

Site is well related to the existing form of the settlement: 

 
The application site forms an extension to a modest area of existing social housing 
(some of which is in the applicants ownership) to the south of the main part of the 
village of Barrowby, adjacent to allotment gardens which form the southern end of 
the village.  I consider that the site is reasonable well related to the form of the 
settlement. 
 

Is in a location which will not spoil the character or landscape setting of the location: 

 
The application site will form an extension into the countryside.  It is considered, 
however, that the visual impact of the scheme will be minimised by its location to the 
west of existing housing and behind the allotment gardens, and because of the 
location of the allotments development of the site should not significantly extend the 
built form of the settlement.  I do not believe that the development would spoil the 
character or landscape setting of the area. 
 

Where public services and satisfactory access can be made available: 

 
The application site is located approximately 1160m (following roads) from the 
centre of the village, which includes local facilities such as the school, shops, a pub 
and a village hall.  The application site is also located in close proximity to the bus 
stop on Low Road.  This provides regular public transport access to all the services 
and facilities of both Barrowby, and more importantly, Grantham. 
 
Conclusions 
 
Policy H8 of the Adopted Local Plan allows for the provision of affordable housing 
on sites in or adjacent to settlements for affordable housing, subject to a number of 
criteria.  Having examined this scheme in light of the criteria I consider that the site 
performs reasonably well in respect of all the requirements of Policy H8 of the 
adopted local plan. 
 
Policy H8 in particular sets out that a scheme must satisfy the Council that the need 
for such housing cannot be accommodated in any other way.  A need (for 25 
affordable units) in Barrowby has been justified.  Two proposals are currently under 
consideration, therefore a decision will need to be taken as to which of the two 
schemes performs best in relation to both the policy requirements and in terms of 
the actual delivery of affordable housing in this location. 
 
The location of this scheme is not contrary to policies of the adopted plan, it will 
provide an appropriate mix of type and tenure of housing and will therefore make a 
positive contribution to the delivery of much needed affordable housing in the 
district.  The location of the scheme in an area of predominantly affordable housing 
does raise concern about the provision of mixed and balanced communities (PPG3), 

 



- SU23 - 

however I believe the balance of house types and rental and shared ownership 
proposed will contribute to the creation of a mixed community in this part of the 
village.  The involvement of an RSL in the development and management of the 
scheme will ensure that future occupants will enjoy the initial “affordable” benefits of 
the scheme.  It is located further from village facilities than the other application, 
however it is in close proximity to a bus stop on a regular service to a greater range 
of facilities in Grantham. 
 
In addition the fact that the scheme is the result of partnership work between the 
applicant, the district and parish councils and has committed funding from the 
regional assembly must also be material to the consideration and determination of 
this application. 
 

Amenities Manager – Leisure & Cultural Services:  Any comments will be reported verbally. 

 
Community Archaeologist:  The proposed development does not affect known 
archaeological sites. 
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer: 
 

Due regard should be given to boundary treatments, lighting and landscaping in the 
interests of crime reduction and community safety. 

 
Central Networks:  No objections. 

 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with established procedures and 
representations have been received from the following: 
 
1. Letter on behalf of 5 Walkers Way. 

 
A summary of the main concerns are listed below: 
 

1. The access to the proposed development would pass within one metre of both the 
kitchen and living room windows (5 Walkers Way).  The occupiers would experience 
the level of car movements passing past this dwelling leading to unacceptable levels 
of noise and adversely affecting the levels of privacy currently enjoyed by the existing 
property. 

 
2. It may be possible to gain access to the site from the allotments a little further to the 

south by pumping station. 
 
3. Barrowby has no public transport after 6pm, there will be a lot of traffic. 
 
4. The site density is high. 
 
5. Occupiers of 5 Walkers Way will experience noise and disturbance from contractors 

vehicles during the construction phase. 
 

 



- SU24 - 

6. The proposed development would affect clients (5 Walkers Way) privacy and should 
be refused or double standards will be perceived. 

 
7. It may be possible to mitigate the effects by reducing the dwelling numbers and 

creating a build out when the access is rebuilt. 
 
Applicants Submissions 
 
In addition to the Design and Access Statement the applicant has enclosed a housing 
needs survey for Barrowby which was undertaken in July 2005. 
The survey identified 25 households who are in need of new or alternative accommodation. 
 
Conclusions 
 
The main considerations in respect of this application are its compatibility with the adopted 
South Kesteven Local Plan.  Specifically, Policies H8 and EN1 and current national policy 
guidance. 
 
The proposed scheme would be located on a Greenfield site on the edge of Barrowby 
village.  The site is not the subject of any site specific policies.  As such the proposal would 
fall within the consideration of an exceptions scheme for affordable housing.  This policy 
allows for small scale affordable housing schemes within or adjoining existing settlements 
subject to criteria: 
 

• the scheme meets a proven local need; 

• the need for such housing cannot be accommodated in any other way; 

• the benefits of the scheme pass to all subsequent occupants by secure 
arrangements; 

• site is well elated to the existing settlement; 

• the location will not spoil the character or landscape setting of the location; 

• where public services are satisfactory access can be made available. 
 
It is considered that the proposed development accords with the above criteria. 
 
There is proven local need.  It is considered that the scheme performs better in relation to 
the above policy and other relevant local plan policies than the planning application for 
affordable units on Reedings Road (S06/0891).  The site is not protected by any specific 
local plan policies.  It would provide an appropriate mix of type and tenure of housing.  
Whilst the location of the units is in an area which is currently predominantly affordable 
units is somewhat at odds with the creation of mixed and balanced communities identified 
in PPG3.  However, it is considered that the mix of house types and tenure will contribute 
to the creation of a mixed community rather than detract from it. 
 
The site is located in close proximity to a bus route on a regular service to Grantham an its 
associated facilities. 
 
Accordingly the proposal is considered to accord with Policy H8 of the adopted South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 
 

 



- SU25 - 

The proposed development is clearly an extension beyond the current built form.  However 
it is considered to be a logical extension to the Walkers Way development.  The layout has 
been designed to prevent any significant loss of residential amenity to existing 
neighbouring occupiers via overlooking/overshadowing/loss of privacy by the siting of 
single storey properties adjacent to the existing properties on Walkers Way, and by 
providing an adequate degree of separation between the proposed development and the 
existing properties. 
 
The layout provides an acceptable means of access and appropriate levels of car parking 
to the satisfaction of the highway authority. 
 
Concern has been raised by the occupier of 5 Walkers Way with regard to noise and 
disturbance from increased vehicle/pedestrian movements to and from the site and 
associated loss of privacy.  The possibility of ‘building out’ a buffer adjacent to the property 
and/or diverting the footpath has been discussed with the highway authority who have 
indicated that they consider these amendments would be detrimental to the free flow of 
traffic/pedestrians and detrimental to highway safety. 
 
It is accepted that the development may well produce additional vehicle/pedestrian 
movements adjacent to 5 Walkers Way.  The location and orientation of this dwelling with 
two windows facing the highway in unfortunate.  This dwelling is no closer to the highway 
than 20 Walkers Way and is currently in close proximity to the footpath and turning head of 
Walkers Way.  The occupiers may experience noise/disturbance and loss of privacy at 
present.  Any increase in noise/disturbance and loss of privacy experienced by the 
occupiers of this property, be it during the construction phase, or on completion, is unlikely 
to be significantly greater than experienced by that property and others along the existing 
access road at present, and is not considered justification to refuse planning permission. 
 
Members may recall at a previous planning committee that planning permission was 
refused for the erection of 24 affordable units on Reedings Road.  It is considered that this 
application is significantly different in so much that it performs better when assessed 
against relevant local plan policy and would delivery affordable units to meet the identified 
need in terms of size and tenure mix. 
 
A section 106 agreement will be required to ensure that the homes are actually delivered 
as ‘affordable’. 
 
In light of the above comments it is recommended that planning permission is granted 
subject to the following conditions and an appropriate section 106 agreement. 
 
 
Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 

The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Guidance note(s) PPG3, Planning Policy Statements PPS1, PPS7, policy H4 of the 
Lincolnshire County Structure Plan, policies H8 and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan.  
The issues relating to impact on residential amenity/noise and disturbance/loss of privacy 
are material considerations but, subject to the condition(s) attached to this permission, are 
not sufficient in this case to indicate against the proposal and to outweigh the policies 
referred to above. 

 



- SU26 - 

 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, final details of the 
materials to be used in the construction of external walls and roofs shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the District Planning Authority. Only such 
materials as may be agreed shall be used in the development. 

3. Before each dwelling (or other development as specified) is occupied, the roads 
and/or footways providing access to that dwelling, for the whole of its frontage, from 
an existing public highway, shall be constructed to a *specification to enable them to 
be adopted as highways maintainable at the public expense, less the carriageway 
and footway surface courses. 

The carriageway and footway surface courses shall be completed within three months from 
the date upon which the erection is commenced of the penultimate dwelling (or other 
development as specified). 

*Note to Applicant:  You are advised to contact Lincolnshire County Council, as the local 
highway authority, for approval of the road construction specification and programme before 
crarrying out any works on site. 

4. No development shall take place before the detailed design of the arrangements for 
surface water drainage has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
and no building shall be occupied before it is connected to the agreed drainage 
system. 

5. Before any dwelling is commenced, all of that part of the estate road and associated 
footways that forms the junction with the main road and which will be constructed 
within the limits of the existing highway, shall be laid out and constructed to finished 
surface levels in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

6. Before any development is commenced the approval of the District Planning 
Authority is required to a scheme of landscaping and tree planting for the site 
(indicating inter alia, the number, species, heights on planting and positions of all the 
trees). Such scheme as may be approved by the District Planning Authority shall be 
undertaken in the first planting season following the occupation of the buildings or 
the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants 
which within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are 
removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the District Planning 
Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

7. Before any development is commenced, details including location and means of 
disposal of surface water and foul drainage shall be submitted to and approved by 
the District Planning Authority, and no building shall be occupied until the drainage 
works have been provided. 

8. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, 
materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment 

 



- SU27 - 

shall be completed before the building(s) are occupied, or in accordance with a 
timetable agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be 
carried out in accordance with approved details. 

9. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development Order) 1995 (or any order revoking or re-enacting that order with or 
without modification), no windows/dormer windows (other than those expressly 
authorised by this permission) shall be constructed unless ortherwise agreed in 
writing by the local planning authority.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

2. These details have not been submitted and the District Planning Authority wish to 
ensure that the colour and type of materials to be used harmonise with the 
surrounding development in the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with 
Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

3. To ensure safe access to the site and each dwelling/building in the interests of 
residential amenity, convenience and safety, and in accordance with Policy EN1 of 
the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

4. To ensure that surface water run-off from the development will not adversely affect, 
by reason of flooding, the safety amenity and commerce of the residents of this site, 
and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

5. In the interests of safety of the users of the public highway and the safety of the 
users of the site, and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven Local 
Plan. 

6. Landscaping and tree planting contributes to the appearance of a development and 
assists in its assimilation with its surroundings. A scheme is required to enable the 
visual impact of the development to be assessed and to create and maintain a 
pleasant environment and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan. 

7. To ensure satisfactory provision is made for the disposal of foul and surface water 
drainage from the site and in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan. 

8. To prevent overlooking to and from the development and to reduce the impact of the 
development on the appearance of the area and in accordance with Policy EN1 of 
the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

9. The planning authority wish to be in a position to determine the effects that such 
development would have on the surrounding area and in accordance with Policy 
EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 
protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building 

 



- SU28 - 

Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and whether geological 
assessment is necessary. 

2. This permission shall not be construed as granting rights to development on, under 
or over land not in the control of the applicant. 

3. The attached planning permission is for development which will involve building up 
to, or close to, the boundary of the site.  Your attention is drawn to the fact that, if 
you should need access to neighbouring land in another ownership in order to 
facilitate the construction of the building and its future maintenance, you are advised 
to obtain permission from the owner of such land for such access before work is 
commenced. 

4. The enclosed letter from Central Network is for your information. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 
 

 



- SU29 - 

 
SU.1 S06/0832/69 Date Received:  09-Jun-2006 

 

Applicant Anvils of Stamford 2A, Radcliffe Road, Stamford, Lincs 

Agent Wythe Holland Partnership Wallis's Mill, Old Dry Lane, Brigstock, 
Northamptonshire, NN14 3ER 

Proposal Erection of 11 townhouses 

Location 2A, Radcliffe Road, Stamford 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Stamford 
Unclassified road 
Demolition of any building - BR1 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 

 
REPORT 
 

Representations Received 
 
Town Council :  Recommend a site visit by SKDC Planning Department and confirmation 
from LCC Highways that access onto a public road is acceptable.  If approved, recommend 
Section 106 Agreement be required. 
 
Local Highway Authority:  Requests 1 standard condition and note to applicant (See below)  
 
Environment Agency:  No objections.  Requests 2 conditions (See below) 
 
Community Archaeologist:  Requests Note to Applicant ARC1 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance statutory requirements as ‘Major 
Development’, the closing date for representations being 14th July 2006. 
 
A total of ten representations have been received and the issues raised are as follows: 
 
a) Loss of light and overbearing impact to ‘SAPS’ building. (3) 
b) Proposed development out of scale with immediate surroundings. (1) 
c) Scale, layout, neighbourhood amenity. (2) 
d) No need for development of such high density. (2) 

e) Proposed development would make it difficult to access eastern side of ‘SAPS’ 
building for maintenance. (3) 
f) Proposed development would result in a significant increase in traffic using the 
junction of Radcliffe Road and North Street, compromising highway safety. (1) 

g) Proposed ridge height too high. (1) 
h) Roof length and elevation is not consistent with those of the properties in the 
immediate area. Split or staggered roofline would be more pleasing.(1) 

i) Loss of privacy to Constable Mews properties. (2) 
j) Windows on first and second floors should decrease in height. (1) 

 



- SU30 - 

k) Lack of provision of play area detrimental to family occupiers. (1) 
l) Impact on security of Properties fronting Cliff Road. (1) 
m) Increase in noise and disturbance on Cliff Road properties. (1)  
n) Lack of consideration to subsidence of surrounding land. (1) 
o) There have previously been issues with regard to foul drainage affecting the site and 

neighbouring Fontwell Gardens.  The proposed development will only aggravate 
this. (1)  

 
Applicants submission 

 
“The detailed scheme is for 11 no. Town Houses accessed off Radcliffe Road.  This site is on the 

edge of existing commercial units, but largely surrounded by residential development. 

 
It has been established from the previously considered traffic statement that the 
proposed 11 no. dwellings do not constitute an increase in traffic movement and are 
therefore a satisfactory equivalent to the current Warehouse/Retail use. 
 
The site access has been widened with the removal of the existing kerb side gate 
and fence to improve manoeuvrability.  An entry gate has now been proposed, set 
back 10m from the back of pavement, to improve security.  A pedestrian gate also 
allows access for refuse collection. 
 
The access road is 5m wide, in excess of the minimum carriageway requirement of 
4.1m set out in the Outline Permission.  Adequate turning space is provided within 
the main courtyard. 
 
The buildings are arranged around a central courtyard, as the Outline Application, 
with external parking for all units.  The buildings are 3 storey with a traditional 
mansard roof to maintain the scale of the development in relation to surrounding 
properties.  All properties have small courtyard gardens to the rear.  The internal 
designs are adjusted where buildings are in closer proximity to existing dwellings. 
 
The elevations drawn show the relative heights of proposed buildings.  The critical 
relationship being to both the bungalow of No. 2 Fontwell Gardens and the 3 storey 
‘Constable Mews’.  We believe that, due to differences in ground level, the 
proposals do not have undue impact. 
 
The north elevation against No. 2 Fontwell has a mansard hip to reduce the impact 
against what is the garage and entrance side of the bungalow.  The only gable 
windows are to the new staircase. 
 
The east elevation to ‘Constable Mews’ is a full storey height lower and with the 
retention of a 2m boundary fence at the higher garden level, will avoid any direct 
overlooking of the ground and first floors (Units 5, 6 and 7).  Our second floor 
(mansard) to these closest units has only bathrooms with obscure glazing.  Where 
the gardens to the ‘Police Houses’ open up in size, the issue of overlooking existing 
dwellings is lessened. 
 

 



- SU31 - 

We believe that the proposed development addresses the points raised in the 
conditional Outline Approval represents efficient use of the available land and would 
represent a significant improvement in character of the surrounding area.” 
 

Officer Report   

 
Reason for referral to Committee 
 
The application has been referred to Committee at the request of the local member. 
 
The site and its surroundings 
 
The 0.19 Ha. (0.48 acre) application site is located to the north and rear of  residential 
properties fronting the eastern end of Radcliffe Road, close to its junction with North Street. 
 
The site currently comprises a portal framed, profiled metal clad building which was 
erected in the early 1990’s, after a fire destroyed the building which previously occupied 
the site. 
 
Since 2001 the premises have been used for the storage and sale of furniture. 
 
Access is off the eastern end of Radcliffe Road, which is a cul-de-sac serving, in addition to 
the application premises, a handful of residential properties and an estate of small 
business premises.  
 
Adjoining the western site boundary is a pet supplies building and this has several windows 
in the wall facing onto what is currently the car parking and turning area for the current use 
but which would the rear yards/gardens of one block of proposed houses.  This has privacy 
implications for these properties and clarification as to how this might be addressed has 
been sought from the applicants.  At the time of writing a reply is awaited.  
 
Site History 
 
Outline planning permission was granted for redevelopment of the site for residential 
purposes in February this year (S.05/1505/69).  The matters of siting and access were 
considered at outline stage.  A letter accompanying the decision notice advised the 
applicant than, when a submission was made for approval of reserved matters, the units at 
the northern end of the site should be kept to a maximum of two storeys and that the 
balconies to the first floor sitting rooms should include side screens to restrict overlooking 
into neighbouring residential properties. 
 
In 2001 planning permission was granted (S.01/1226/69) for the current use, a furniture 
warehouse with sales. 
 
In 1990 planning permission was granted for the erection of the existing building 
(S.69/1221/12) following the destruction of the previous one by fire. 
 
In 1988 permission was granted for the use of the premises for light industrial purposes 
(toy manufacturing).   
 

 



- SU32 - 

The Proposal 
 
Approval of Reserved Matters is sought for the erection of 11 dwellings in the form of two 
blocks facing onto a communal parking area.  The dwellings are 3 storey, with the second 
floor accommodation in the roofspace. 
 
The eastern block comprises seven dwellings and the western block four dwellings.  As 
originally submitted both blocks would have ‘Mansard’ type roofs to keep down the overall 
height, with the eastern block being hipped, so as to reduce the impact on the neighbouring 
property to the north, 2 Fontwell Gardens.   
 
The houses have three double bedrooms and small rear gardens/yards, 4.7m depth for the 
eastern block and 5m for those to the western ones. 
 
Materials are specified to be natural stone to the external walls and slate for the roof. 
 
The existing building on the site has a ground floor area of approximately 1,200 sq.m. 
(12,665 sq.ft.).  The proposed dwellings would have combined ground floor area of  645 
sq.m. (5,490 sq.ft.).    
 
Parking provision is non the basis of two spaces per dwelling. 
Amended proposals  
 
Amended drawings have been submitted showing the design of the dwellings improved by 
the introduction of gables into the front and rear elevations of both blocks.  The northern 
end of the western block has been reduced even more to lessen the impact on the 
neighbouring property to the north. 
 
Policy Considerations  
 
Central Government Guidance  
 
PPG 3 – Housing (2000) 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan  
 
Policy S1 – Promoting Sustainable Development 
 
Policy S2 – Location of Development  
 
Policy H2 – Housing on Previously Developed Land 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 

 
Policy H6- Housing on unallocated sites. 
 
Policy EN1- Protection and enhancement of the environment. 
 
SKDC Interim Housing Policy  

 



- SU33 - 

 
Key issues 
 
Design. 
 
Highway safety – The highway authority are satisfied with the revised scheme.  
 
Impact on surroundings- Amenities of neighbouring properties. 
 
Conclusion    
 
The principle of eleven dwellings arranged as proposed has been accepted at the Outline 
stage, the dwellings submitted for this application for Reserved Matters approval are of a 
greater floor area, resulting in reduced space for private amenity space.  
 
The highway authority were satisfied at outline stage that the access and junction of 
Radcliffe Road and North Street could safely accommodate the traffic generated by the 
proposed development. 
 
The site is significantly lower than the properties to the east, fronting Cliff Road and about a 
metre lower than no.2 Fontwell Gardens. 
 
The proposed materials for the external walls and the roof covering are of a higher quality 
than has been used for other recent development in the vicinity. 
 
Reason for approval : 
 
The proposal is in accordance, policies H6 and EN1 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. The 
issues relating to highway safety, privacy and overbearing presence are material 
considerations but, subject to the conditions attached to this permission, are not sufficient 
in this case to indicate against the proposal and to outweigh the policies referred to above. 
 
Recommendation -  That, subject to the receipt of satisfactory confirmation as to how the 
privacy issues raised by the windows in the ‘SAPS’ building will be addressed, the details 
be approved subject to the following conditions:  
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. This consent relates to the application as amended by amended drawing nos. 
1366/06 Rev B, 07 Rev B, 08 Rev B and 09 Rev B received on 17 October 2006. 

3. Samples of the materials to be used for all external walls and roofs shall be 
submitted to the District Planning Authority before any development to which this 
permission relates is commenced and only such materials as may be approved in 
writing by the authority shall be used in the development. 

 



- SU34 - 

4. The arrangements shown on the approved plan 1366/05 Rev B dated 9 June 2006 
for the parking/turning/loading/unloading of vehicles shall be available at all times 
when the premises are in use. 

5. Before the development is commenced, there shall be submitted to and approved by 
the District Planning Authority details of the means of surfacing of the unbuilt 
portions of the site. 

6. The first floor windows in the north facing gables shall be obscure glazed.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

2. For the avoidance of doubt. 

3. To ensure that the materials to be used for the external walls and roof coverings are 
appropriate to the context, in accordance with Policy EN1 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan. 

4. To allow vehicles to enter and leave the highway in a forward gear in the interests of 
highway safety, and in accordance with PPG13. 

5. In the interests of visual amenity and in accordance with Policy H6 of the South 
Kesteven Local Plan. 

6. To safeguard the privacy of the neighbouring residential properties to the north and 
in accordance with Policy H6 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. Your attention is drawn to the enclosed Planning Guidance Note No 1 entitled 
'Archaeology and Your Development'. 

2. Prior to the commencement of any of the access works within the public highway, 
please contact the Divisional Highways Manager (Lincolnshire County Council) on 
01522 782070 for appropriate specification and construction information. 

3. You are advised that the application site falls within an area which requires 
protection from Radon. You are advised to contact the District Council's Building 
Control Services to ascertain the level of protection required, and whether geological 
assessment is necessary. 

 
This application was deferred from the last meeting for Members to undertake a site 
inspection. 
 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 

 



- SU35 - 

 

SU.2 S06/1336/12 Date Received:  27-Sep-2006 
 

Applicant Mr   Choudhury 46, Saxon Road, Eastfield, Peterborough, PE1 5JT 

Agent Sure Design Ltd Unit 1, Sleaford Road Industrial Estate, Bracebridge Heath, 
Lincoln, LN4 2ND 

Proposal Change of use from shop premises (A1) to restaurant (A3 & A5) 

Location 37, North Street, Bourne 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Bourne 
Conservation Area (Policy C9) 
A Class Road 
Unclassified road 
Listed Building (Grade II) 
Adjacent Listed Building 
C9 Area Conservation Policy 
S1 Town Centre Shopping Area 
S3 Primary Town Centre Shopping Area 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 

 
REPORT 
 

Representations Received 
 
Town Council: 
 

“The committee objects as it believes that this proposal would affect the viability of the 
whole of the town centre.  Adding a further eating-place to North Street would be over 
saturating the area.” 

 
Local Highway Authority:  No observations. 
 
Environmental Health:  If permitted request standard conditions S2 and S5. 
 
Representations as a result of publicity 
 
The application has been advertised in accordance with statutory requirements, the closing 
date for representations being 27 October 2006. 
 
Bourne Civic Society have objected to the application on the grounds the proposed change 
of use would be contrary to Policies of LDF which seek to promote and revitalise the 
central area of Bourne.  There are already nine fast-food outlets in North Street in addition 
to numerous others in the remainder of the central area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officer Report 
 

 



- SU36 - 

Reason for referral to Committee 
 
Policy Issues. 
 
Objections from Town Council and Civic Society. 
 
The Site and its Surroundings 
 
The two-storey application property fronts the western side of North Street, some 165m 
from Market Place and 55m south of the junction with Burghley Street. 
 
To the rear is a large service yard to which access is gained off Burghley Street, through 
the British Legion car park. 
 
The premises are currently vacant but were last occupied by a florists.  They are not listed 
but are within the Bourne Conservation Area. 
 
The premises are adjoined on the northern side by the grade II listed Wake House and to 
the south by a three-storey building, also listed grade II, with retail on the ground floor and 
living accommodation over. 
 
There are already several restaurants, cafes and takeaways in this part of Bourne, mostly 
on the eastern side of North Street. 
 
Site History 
 
There is no relevant site history on the application premises. 
 
The Proposal 
 
Planning permission is sought for a change of use of the ground floor to a restaurant (A3) 
with a takeaway facility (A5). 
 
The application has been advertised as a proposal to change the use and alterations to the 
shopfront.  However, no alterations are proposed, although the blinds currently above the 
windows are shown to be removed. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Central Government Guidance 
 
PPS6 – Planning for Town Centres. 
 
PP15 – Planning and the Historic Environment. 
 
PPG13 – Transport. 
 
Lincolnshire Structure Plan 
 
Policy E4 – Town Centres Development. 

 



- SU37 - 

 
Policy BE3 – Conservation of the Historic Built Environment. 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 
 
Policy S3 – Non-Retail Uses in Primary Town Centre Shopping Streets. 
 
Policy C9 – Development in Conservation Areas. 
 
Policy EN1 – Protection and Enhancement of the Environment. 
 
Key Issues 
 
The main issues with this type of use are the environmental e.g. odours, litter, late night 
opening hours etc, and the impact of the use on vitality and viability of the town centre. 
 

Conclusions 

 
The premises subject of this application are located at the extreme northern end of the 
Primary Town Centre Shopping Area for Bourne and although, as has been mentioned 
above, there are several similar uses in the vicinity, it is considered that there would, in this 
instance, be no adverse impact on the vitality and viability of the town centre. 
 
Conditions are recommended to control potential environmental problems. 
 
 

Summary of Reason(s) for Approval 
 
The proposal is in accordance with national and local policies as set out in Planning Policy 
Statement PPS6, Planning Policy Guidance Notes PPG15 and PPG13, Policies S1, E4 
and BE3 of the Lincolnshire Structure Plan and Policies C9 and EN1 of the South Kesteven 
Local Plan.  Although there is some conflict with Policy S3, in this instance, subject to the 
conditions attached to this permission, it is considered that it is not sufficient in this case to 
indicate against the proposal. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Approved subject to condition(s) 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 
years from the date of this permission. 

2. Before the use is commenced, equipment shall be installed as will suppress the 
emission of fumes or smell and obviate odours from frying or other cooking 
processes. No development shall take place until details of the equipment have 
been submitted to and approved by the District Planning Authority. 

3. No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved by 
the District Planning Authority, a scheme showing provision within the site for 
storage prior to disposal of refuse, crates and packing cases. 

4. Prior to the use commencing, there shall be submitted to and approved by the 
District Planning Authority details of the means of collection of litter externally of the 

 



- SU38 - 

premises. Such details as may be approved shall be installed prior to the use 
commencing.  

 

The reason(s) for the condition(s) is/are: 
 

1. Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by section 51 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 

2. To ensure a satisfactory development, and to ensure the proper treatment of any 
contamination present on the site, in the interests of public and environmental safety 
and in accordance with PPS23. 

3. The storage of these items can detract from the appearance of an area. By confining 
their storage to a particular part of the site the impact is reduced and in accordance 
with PPS23. 

4. In the interests of the amenities of the locality and in accordance with PPS23. 

 
Note(s) to Applicant 

1. You are advised that Advertisement Consent may be required for any signage on 
the building. 

 
 

*   *   *   *   *   * 
 

 

 



- SU39 - 

 

 

SU.3 S06/1374/56 Date Received:  03-Oct-2006 
 

Applicant Octavia Estates Ltd Swan Centre, Fishers Lane, Chiswick, London, W4 
1RX 

Agent PDG Architects Toll Bar House, Shrewsbury Avenue, Peterborough, PE2 
7BX 

Proposal Construction of 18 flats & associated external works 

Location R/o 1-3, Market Place, Market Deeping 

 

Site Details 
Parish(es) 
 

 
Market Deeping 
Conservation Area (Policy C9) 
Site adjoins Conservation Area 
Adj authority - Peterborough City - AA7 
Unclassified road 
Radon Area - Protection required 
Countryside M'ment Plan - MC2 
C9 Area Conservation Policy 
Airfield Zone - No consultation required 
Drainage - Welland and Nene 

 
REPORT 
 

Representations Received 
 
Town Council:  Continues to objection on the grounds of access onto a bust street. 
 
Housing Strategy Manager : 
 
The site is in an urban area and because there are less than 25 dwellings there is no requirement 

for affordable dwellings. 

 
Local Highway Authority:   
 

Visibility North from the proposed point of access to Church Street is substantially 
below requirements due to the existing buildings.  The close proximity of the existing 
pedestrian crossing and roundabout where an intensification of vehicles turning right 
into the site, together with waiting and manoeuvring would be detrimental to highway 
safety. 

 
Architectural Liaison:  Standard letter received giving crime prevention advice. 
 
Community Archaeologist: 
 
The site lies in an area of archaeological interest.  If remains are discovered then the applicant 

should contact the planning Archaeologist. 

 
Lincolnshire Education Authority:  Requires contribution of £27,892. 
 
Welland & Deepings Internal Drainage Board:  No objections. 

 



- SU40 - 

 
Representations as a result of publicity 

 
One letter of objection from 55 Church Street, Market Deeping regarding highway safety and traffic 
. 

 
 

Officer Report 

 
Reason for referral to Committee 

 
The application has been referred to Committee because it is a major development and the 
previous application was approved, on officer recommendation, contrary to highway 
advice. 
 

The site and its surroundings 

 
The site is located to the rear of retail premises 1 – 3 Market Place, Market Deeping and 
the site comprises part of the refurbished shop car park and part of the grounds of Double 
and Megson Solicitors. 
 
Access is obtained from Church Street and is located between Tonino’s Pizzaria and the 
new extended shop near the “Pelican Crossing” and the traffic island at the junction of The 
Market Place, Bridge Street and Church Street. 
 
 

Site History 

 
Relevant History. 
 
S05/0925 – Construction of 12 Flats.  Refused 22.9.05 
S06/0235 – Construction of 12 flats.  Approved 16.5.06 
 
 

The Proposal 

 
Full planning permission is sought for the construction of 18 two bedroom flats in one 
building on three floors. 
 
The building has an “I” shaped footprint with the roof ridge of the central part being 
approximately 10m high rising to approximately 11m at either end..  The upper floor flats 
have “Juliette” balconies to the living spaces and the rear ground floor flats have French 
doors. 
 
The proposed development will remove 24 car parking spaces from the existing private car 
park for the new refurbished shop, whilst providing 16 spaces for the dwellings.  Outside 
the application area, there is a turning area for vehicles servicing the shop and an access 
to Double and Megson’s car park. 
 

 



- SU41 - 

Whilst not part of this application, the pedestrian route to the flats and improvements to the 
side elevation of the shop to improve the environment for residents has been approved as 
part of application ref S05/0068. 
 
 

Policy Considerations 

 
National Planning Policy 
 
PPS1 – Delivering Sustainable Development.   PPS1 sets out the government’s broad 
aims and objectives on planning policy.   The key thread of this policy is the principle of 
sustainable development, the prudent use of natural resources and social cohesion and 
inclusion.   There are numerous definitions of sustainable development but the basic 
principles involve the re-use of previously developed sites well related to the existing 
settlement and easily served by a range of transport choices for future occupants. 
 
PPG3 – Housing.   PPG3 specifically outlines the governments objectives in relation to the 
provision of housing.   Whilst pre-dating PPS1, PPG3 also confirms the primacy of 
delivering sustainable developments.   This guidance provides information that is of 
particular relevance to this proposal on the following matters (relevant paragraph numbers 
provided): 
 

1. secure an appropriate mix of dwelling size, type and affordability (para 11) 
2. encourage the provision of housing to meet the needs of specific groups (para 11) 
3. avoid housing development which makes inefficient use of land and provide for 

more intensive housing development in and around existing centres and close to 
public transport nodes (para 11) 

4. A community's need for a mix of housing types, including affordable housing, is a 
material planning consideration (para 14) 

5. The Governments commitment to maximising the re-use of previously-developed 
land to minimise the amount of greenfield land being taken for development.   (para 
22) 

6. Undertaking of a sequential approach to site selection (para 30 and 31) 

7. Provision of open space in developments (para 53) 

8. Designing for quality (para 54-56) 

9. Making best use of land, i.e.   avoiding developments below 30 to the hectare (para 
57-58) 

10. Defining previously developed land (annex c) 

 
Development Plan 
 
Regional Spatial Strategy for the East Midlands – RSS8.   The regional spatial strategy 
sets the overall housing requirement for the County.    
 

 



- SU42 - 

Lincolnshire Structure Plan 2006.  As with all contemporary planning documents the 
promotion of sustainable development is the central plank of the revised Structure Plan.  
The Structure Plan translates the regional strategic housing requirement into district 
allocations.  As Members will be aware South Kesteven’s allocation has been cut to 
approximately 9200, a figure which has largely been accommodated in commitments and 
urban capacity sites.  The revised Structure Plan identifies the settlement hierarchy for the 
County and classifies The Deepings as a small town. 
 
Additionally the revised Structure Plan adopts a lower than national threshold for the 
delivery of previously developed sites at 35% of all new dwellings. 
 
South Kesteven Local Plan 1995.  Policy H6 – This is a permissive policy that allows for 
developments in settlements such as Deeping St James that are not specifically identified 
on the proposals map.  Whilst specifically allowing for small groups of dwellings (defined as 
up to 10) the supporting text does allow for greater numbers where the five criterion are 
satisfied.  Those criterion being: 
 

i. The impact of the proposal on the form, character and setting of the settlement and 
on the community and its local environment; 

 
ii. The availability of utility services 

 
iii. The provision of satisfactory access; 

 
iv. The need to protect open spaces defined on the proposals map as serving an 

important visual or amenity function; and 
 
v. The need to avoid the extension of isolated groups of houses and the consolidation 

or extension of sporadic and linear development. 
 
It must be acknowledged that this development is prosing housing numbers that are far in 
excess of that originally envisaged by Policy H6.  It is in conformity with the determining 
criteria of H6 but minimal weight should be given to this policy due to the number of 
dwellings proposed. 
 
Policy EN1 – The protection and enhancement of the environment.  This is a general 
consideration policy that aims at ensuring that new developments do not have an adverse 
impact upon their environs. 
 
Policy C9  -  Buildings in Conservation Areas: 
 
Within the areas shown on the Proposals Map the following policies with apply: 

 
1. Proposals to demolish, or partially demolish, any building which makes an important 

contribution to the street scene, environmental quality or character of the area will 
not normally be permitted; and 

 
2. Applications for planning permission for development will be considered having 

regard to: 

 

 



- SU43 - 

i) the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area; 
ii) the appropriateness of the proposal in terms of design, scale and 

materials; and 
iii) the impact of any new use on the area. 

 
Key Issues 

 
The principle of the development – Previous decisions are a material consideration.  Since 
the approval for 12 dwellings was granted the applicant has now applied for 18 
consideration must be given to the impact the additional 6 flats have over those approved.  
The differences between the two proposals relating to: 
 
a) Scale and Form; 
b) Impact on Amenity; 
c) Parking; and access 
 
will need to be considered. 
 

Applicants Submissions 

 
The regeneration of the whole site will provide a mixed use scheme for Market Deeping 
Town Centre.  This meets planning policy for sustainability.  It reuses a previously used but 
vacant site and provides two important and viable town centre uses. 
 
The possibility of through connections at the rear and side of the site have been examined 
but this is not possible to achieve due to land ownerships.  Other uses have also been 
examined but are not viable.  This proposal for retailing provides the maximum amount of 
new retail floorspace that is viable. 
 
The plans show the existing trees on site to be retained.  Following discussions with Mr 
Shipman it seems likely that these trees are in poor condition and it may be preferred that 
they are felled and replaced.  We would be pleased to have such a matter conditioned. 
 
Car parking 
 
This land is not currently used though much of it was previously car parking. It is not used 
for car parking associated with the retail unit and there has been, and is no longer, any 
need for the car parking.  The retail has sufficient car parking on other land to more than 
adequately satisfy its needs.  The accompanying illustrative plan demonstrates how 
vehicles can continue to park and turn within the remaining post office yard. 
 
Planning Policy Guidance Note 3 on Housing has been issued after the adoption of the 
Local Plan and therefore contains relevant policies on housing. 
 
Paragraph 61 states that Local Authorities should revise their parking standards to allow for 
significantly lower levels of off street parking provision, particularly for developments in 
locations such as town centres, where services are particularly accessible by walking, 
cycling or public transport. 
 

 



- SU44 - 

Planning Policy Guidance note 13 on Transport states in paragraph 51 that Local 
Authorities should not require developers to provide more spaces than they themselves 
wish. 
 
This site is immediately accessible to shops and other facilities and also to bus stops giving 
access to Peterborough.  The more general policies in PPG 13 therefore dictate that as the 
option for walking, cycling and public transport are readily available car parking should be 
minimised.  100% cycle parking provision has been made. 
 
Design 
 
The scheme has been designed to ensure minimal loss of privacy for adjoining properties.  
It meets density requirements of PPG 3.  It provides for amenity space for the future 
residents.  Materials can be chosen to compliment surrounding buildings. 
 
Viability of Alternative uses 
 
Although the area of land is quite large, it would prove most unsuitable for either retail or 
office development.  This would be back land development with no visibility or frontage to 
the High Street/Church Street.  There will be no passing trade which is of paramount 
importance especially for retailers. 
 
The economics of building retail units at a cost of £70 per square foot, plus the land value 
and on costs and only to receive a return of £5.00/£7.50 per square foot on the Zone A is 
not viable. 
 
Similarly for offices which would cost more and only to receive a rent in the order of £7.00 
per square foot does not stack up. 
 
The viability is unacceptable as it would not produce the right return for a 
Developer/Investor and secondly, I do not believe that there would be demand from 
retailers (even local tradesmen) or from office occupiers in this location. 
 
 

Conclusion 

 
As Members are aware the 2004 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act places a legal 
duty upon the decision maker to make decisions in accordance with the development plan 
unless other material considerations indicate otherwise.  It is considered that the proposed 
development accords with policies relating to design, density and car parking and therefore 
the key issue of this application is the access and consequent impact on highway safety. 
 
Scale and Form 
 
The new proposal is 2 metres higher in all aspects than that approved.  Top floor flats have 
flat roofed dormers.  The end projections to the ground and first floor flats have mono-pitch 
roofs. 
 
Traditional dormers in the neighbourhood have either gable or hipped roofs and thus the 
flat roof proposals do not reflect the neighbouring vernacular.  It is also considered that the 

 



- SU45 - 

mixture of monopitch, flat roofs and gables is visually discordant.  All these matters should 
have been addressed through a proper design statement taking cognisance form the 
surrounding neighbourhood.  The previous proposal had none of these previous design 
incongruities. 
 
It is considered that this new proposal does not enhance the Conservation Area. 
 
Amenity 
 
It is considered that the building will now dominate the skyline when viewed from the 
precinct.  The additional height will also create a more dominant impact on the surrounding 
residential properties.  Additionally the top floor flats will create overlooking to both 53 and 
55 Church Street and those properties to the rear from oblique views. 
 
Parking 
 
Only 16 spaces are to be provided this is a shortfall of 2 spaces, and whilst accords with 
PPG13 guidance does not accord with the Highway advice.  It is considered that the 
shortfall can only be addressed through the loss of spaces for retail and this is considered 
to be unacceptable in reducing the spaces for the retail development. 
 
Access 
 
It is acknowledged that Highways, the Town Council and a neighbour have objected that 
the access is poor and they consider that this has an adverse impact on highway safety.  
Yet the access exists lawfully and there is capacity for 57 vehicles to park without the need 
for planning permission. 
 
Officers argued that the planning benefits, though finely balanced, of the previous proposal 
outweighed the Highways advice and that the application should be approved.  In this case 
your officers do not conclude that there are benefits from 6 further dwellings, indeed there 
are disbenefits as outlined above and therefore consider that Highway advice should be 
acknowledged. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   That the development be Refused for the following reason(s) 
 

1. It is considered that the proposed development will create a visually discordant external 
appearance, by reason of mixed roof designs, that does not borrow architectural features 
from the surrounding neighbourhood as required by a proper access and design statement.  
The proposal is considered to dominate views from the surrounding area and to have an 
adverse impact on the visual amenity on neighbouring residential properties.  It is also 
considered that the proposal will create loss of privacy from overlooking, from opposed 
windows and from oblique views, to neighbouring residential properties.  This is contrary to 
PPS1, PPG3 and Policies H6, EN1 and C9 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 

2. It is considered that visibility north from the proposed point of access to Church Street is 
substantially below requirements due to the existing buildings.  The close proximity of the 
existing pedestrian crossing and roundabout where an intensification of vehicles turning 
right into the site, together with waiting and manoeuvring would be detrimental to highway 
safety.  This contrary to Policy T3 of the South Kesteven Local Plan. 
 

 



- SU46 - 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM   
 
 

Report No:  PLA.631 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE 
 

05  DECEMBER  2006  
 

 
 
REPORT BY ACTING DEVELOPMENT CONTROL SERVICES MANAGER 
 
 
Information relating to development control and other planning activity 
 
 
 
TABLE 1 Applications not determined within 8 weeks 
 
This table, broken down by North/South Team and then by officer, lists those applications 
that have not been determined within the recommended 8 week time period.  These 
applications are listed by application number, registration date, applicant, proposal and 
location. 
 
The number of applications listed, 43 in total, is a decrease since the previous Committee 
(55 applications listed). 
 
 
TABLE 2 Applications dealt with under delegated powers 
 from 30 October – 17 November 2006 
 
This table lists those applications upon which decisions have been made under the 
Powers of the Council Exercisable by Officers (as adopted by the District Council on 12 
April 1990), and are set out on Pages 65-67 of the Council Yearbook.  Decisions 
authorised by the Planning Panel are identified. 
 
 
TABLE 3 Planning Appeals Update 
 
This table lists outstanding appeals together with newly submitted appeals and decisions 
received during the last month. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 



Table 1 / Page 1 

TABLE 1 
 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL SERVICES 
 
 
Applications not determined within the 8 week statutory period 
 
Report No:  16/06 
Date Prepared:  20 November 2006 
No of applications over 8 weeks:  43 

 

 

 

NORTH  RURAL 
 

 

S05/1269/22/EAB 
 

Date received: 
16-Sep-2005 
No of days:  430 

Mr A G  White 
Industrial Development (B1, B2, B8) 
Sir Isaac Newton Business Park, Part OS 0062, Bourne Road, 
Colsterworth 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting Ecology Survey 
 

 

S06/0532/46/KJC 
 

Date received: 
10-Apr-2006 
No of days:  224 

Mr & Mrs   Rowland 
Proposed garage extension and alterations 
The Old Hall, Hall Lane, Brandon 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/0678/42/EAB 
 

Date received: 
11-May-2006 
No of days:  193 

Mr E A  Cant 
Change of use of agricultural land to car parking 
38, Church Leys, Heydour 
Reason for non-determination: 
Deferred pending decision on Scheduled Monument Consent 
 

 

S06/0713/55/KJC 
 

Date received: 
16-May-2006 
No of days:  188 

Dr   Lawrenson & Dr Pullinger 
Demolition of existing house & surgery and erection of two 
storey starter flats (18).. 
15 - 17, Winters Lane, Long Bennington 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 

S06/0843/59/KJC 
 

Date received: 
12-Jun-2006 
No of days:  161 

Mr & Mrs R J  Dowding 
Removal of occupancy condition to allow annexe to be 
occupied as separate dwelling 
Beechcroft Farm, Normanton on Cliffe 
Reason for non-determination: 
To be withdrawn 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 2 

 

S06/1177/22/EAB 
 

Date received: 
21-Aug-2006 
No of days:  91 

K O  Bocock 
Residential development 
Adj 19 Bourne Road, Colsterworth 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting Design and Access Statement 
 

 

S06/1195/55/KJC 
 

Date received: 
29-Aug-2006 
No of days:  83 

D J & D S Baggaley 
Erection of chalet bungalow 
R/o 74, Church Street, Long Bennington 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 

S06/LB/6588/46/KJC 
 

Date received: 
10-Apr-2006 
No of days:  224 

Mr & Mrs   Rowland 
Garage extension and alterations 
The Old Hall, Hall Lane, Brandon 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/LB/6596/05/KJC 
 

Date received: 
27-Apr-2006 
No of days:  207 

Anthony John Scarborough 
New openings in curtilage buildings and demolition of tin shed 
Heath Farm, Barkston 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amendments 
 

 

 

 

NORTH  URBAN 
 

 

S01/0426/54/MAS 
 

Date received: 
05-Apr-2001 
No of days:  2055 

Mr R D  Stafford 
Residential development (renewal) 
Adjacent Bridge End Grove, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting details of flood prevention measures 
 

 

S02/0154/35/MAS 
 

Date received: 
05-Feb-2002 
No of days:  1749 

Buckminster Estate & Jenkinson Trust 
Residential development, local centre, school, open space, 
roads and bridge 
Poplar Farm, Barrowby Road, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Public Inquiry set for February 2007 
 

 

S05/0788/35/KJC 
 

Date received: 
09-Jun-2005 
No of days:  529 

Ben  Stanley 
Fascia sign, swing sign and projecting box sign 
Dr Thirsty, 85, Westgate, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 3 

 

S05/1609/35/KJC 
 

Date received: 
02-Dec-2005 
No of days:  353 

Mr M  DiMeglio 
Change of use from A1 (retail) to A3 (restaurant/snack bars) 
Unit 8, The George Shopping Centre, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/0552/35/MH 
 

Date received: 
12-Apr-2006 
No of days:  222 

Asset & Facilities Management 
Residential development 
Former Kwiksave Site, Castlegate, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting Archaeological Evaluation 
 

 

S06/0997/35/KJC 
 

Date received: 
14-Jul-2006 
No of days:  129 

William Hill Organization Ltd 
Rear extension & siting of 3 air condenser units on rear wall 
45, High Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/LB/6645/35/KJC 
 

Date received: 
03-Aug-2006 
No of days:  109 

Karen Platten, William Hill Organisation Ltd 
Demolition of existing extension, new rear extension and siting 
of 3 no air conditioning units on rear wall 
45, High Street, Grantham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

 

 

SOUTH  RURAL 
 

 

S02/1522/68/KJC 
 

Date received: 
13-Nov-2002 
No of days:  1468 

A G  White 
Change of use to B1, B2 and B8 
The Fox Garage, A1 North, South Witham 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting details of traffic generation 
 

 

S04/1509/75/IVW 
 

Date received: 
01-Oct-2004 
No of days:  780 

The Proprietor 
Day nursery 
Adj & R/o Pumping Station, Barholm Road, Tallington 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 

S05/0855/23/MAS 
 

Date received: 
22-Jun-2005 
No of days:  516 

Hay Hampers Limited 
Removal of condition 2 from planning permission 
SK23/0631/89 (retention of windows) 
The Barn, Church Street, Corby Glen 
Reason for non-determination: 
Further amendments required 
 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 4 

 

S06/1059/82/IVW 
 

Date received: 
31-Jul-2006 
No of days:  112 

Mr S W  Stanton 
Agricultural dwelling 
Lings Farm, Witham on the Hill 
Reason for non-determination: 
To a future meeting 
 

 

S06/1094/75/78/IVW 
 

Date received: 
03-Aug-2006 
No of days:  109 

P N  Watts 
Siting of temporary dwelling in connection with free range egg 
production unit 
The Pheasantries, Casewick Lane, Tallington 
Reason for non-determination: 
To a future meeting 
 

 

S06/1095/75/78/IVW 
 

Date received: 
03-Aug-2006 
No of days:  109 

P N  Watts 
Erection of free range egg production unit with hardstandings 
and alterations to access 
The Pheasantries, Casewick Lane, Tallington 
Reason for non-determination: 
To a future meeting 
 

 

S06/LB/6620/04/IVW 
 

Date received: 
20-Jun-2006 
No of days:  153 

T M  Trollope-Bellew 
Alteration of listed building (insertion of flue liners) 
The Old Hall, Barholm 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting revised details 
 

 

S06/LB/6661/58/JJ 
 

Date received: 
01-Sep-2006 
No of days:  80 

Edren Homes Ltd 
Erection of bungalow & provision of study (amendment to 
S04/0059) 
Land North Of Farthings Fold, Hanthorpe 
Reason for non-determination: 
 

 

 

 

SOUTH  URBAN 
 

 

S00/1124/69/IVW 
 

Date received: 
31-Oct-2000 
No of days:  2211 

F H Gilman & Co 
Business Park 
PT OS 2700, Land north of Uffington Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to Archaeological 
Evaluation and S106 agreement 
 

 

S03/0320/56/MAS 
 

Date received: 
27-Feb-2003 
No of days:  1362 

The Robert Doughty Consultancy Ltd 
Industrial development B1, B2 and B8 
OS 3900, 4800, 5300 & PT OS 7200, Northfield Road, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Pending Local Development Framework 
 

 



Table 1 / Page 5 

 

S03/1206/69/IVW 
 

Date received: 
03-Sep-2002 
No of days:  1539 

Mr S  Haynes 
Erection of garage and verandah 
56, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plan 
 

 

S03/LB/6086/69/IVW 
 

Date received: 
03-Sep-2003 
No of days:  1174 

Mr S  Haynes 
Extension of listed building (verandah and garage) 
56, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended drawings 
 

 

S04/0949/69/MAS 
 

Date received: 
22-Jun-2004 
No of days:  881 

Hereward Homes Ltd 
Erection of three flats and a two storey dwelling 
R/o 4 St. Pauls Street, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Remitted for redetermination by the High Court, awaiting 
amended plans 
 

 

S04/1463/56/MAS 
 

Date received: 
24-Sep-2004 
No of days:  787 

Tesco Stores Ltd 
Extension to superstore 
Tesco Stores Ltd, Godsey Lane, Market Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman and Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
 

 

S04/1789/56/MAS 
 

Date received: 
26-Nov-2004 
No of days:  724 

Wilcox Body Trailers 
Factory unit and offices 
Land Adjacent Wilcox Body Systems, Blenheim Way, Market 
Deeping 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman and Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 

S05/1652/69/MAS 
 

Date received: 
09-Dec-2005 
No of days:  346 

Croft Commercial Developments Ltd 
Four Class B1 (business) units 
South View Farm, Tinwell Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting further information 
 

 

S06/0439/69/IVW 
 

Date received: 
27-Mar-2006 
No of days:  238 

E Bowman & Sons 
Residential development (outline) 
Land And Premises Of E Bowman & Sons, Cherryholt Road, 
Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Chairman/Vice Chairman to approve subject to S106 
agreement 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 6 

 

S06/0630/12/IVW 
 

Date received: 
28-Apr-2006 
No of days:  206 

Bourne Rugby Union Football Club 
Erection of floodlights (6 retrospective and 11 proposed) 
Bourne Rugby Club, Milking Nook Drove, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
To a future meeting 
 

 

S06/0632/69/IVW 
 

Date received: 
28-Apr-2006 
No of days:  206 

The George of Stamford 
Restoration and conversion of garages into storage and 
workshop facilities for hotel, provision of skip enclosure and 
formation of additional car parking within garden area 
George Hotel, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 

S06/0694/12/JJ 
 

Date received: 
10-May-2006 
No of days:  194 

HPC (Homes) Ltd 
Erection of storage and packaging warehouse with office 
(revised scheme) 
Part OS 3030, South Fen Road Business Park, South Fen 
Road, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans re highway issues 
 

 

S06/0907/69/IVW 
 

Date received: 
26-Jun-2006 
No of days:  147 

Mr & Mrs   Vipan 
Erection of chalet bungalow 
88, Queens Walk, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting revised drawings 
 

 

S06/0929/25/JST 
 

Date received: 
30-Jun-2006 
No of days:  143 

Ms C  Dandridge 
Parking of commercial vehicle (renewal) 
18, Church Street, Deeping St. James 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting amended plans 
 

 

S06/1151/69/MAS 
 

Date received: 
08-Aug-2006 
No of days:  104 

Wm Morrison Supermarkets plc 
Construction of non food retail & leisure development 
Former Mirlees Blackstone Site, Uffington Road, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Negotiations re highway amendments 
 

 

S06/1154/12/MAS 
 

Date received: 
14-Aug-2006 
No of days:  98 

One Medical 
Bourne Community Health Scheme inc 21 Key Worker 
Apartments 
Southfield Business Park, South Road, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting HSE advice 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 1 / Page 7 

 

S06/1189/12/MAS 
 

Date received: 
10-Aug-2006 
No of days:  102 

Southfield Business Park Limited 
Erection of 5 office blocks and ancillary works 
Southfield Business Park, South Road, Bourne 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 

S06/1232/25/JJ 
 

Date received: 
06-Sep-2006 
No of days:  75 

Mrs B  Charity 
Erection of two dwellings 
Adj 38 Spalding Road, Deeping St. James 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting Highway comments 
 

 

S06/LB/6598/69/IVW 
 

Date received: 
28-Apr-2006 
No of days:  206 

The George of Stamford 
Alterations to curtilage listed building 
George Hotel, High Street, St. Martins, Stamford 
Reason for non-determination: 
Awaiting additional information 
 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 1 

TABLE 2 

 

APPLICATIONS DECIDED UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 

FROM 30 OCTOBER – 17 NOVEMBER 2006 
 

 

S05/1492/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs B  Green 
Proposal: Erection of 3 houses, 1 flat and associated parking and 

external works 
Location: Land Adj Grafton House, 1, Conduit Road, Stamford 
Decision: Refused - 14 November 2006 

 

S06/0765/69  
Applicant: Jelsons Limited 
Proposal: Erection of seven dwellings 
Location: Land Off, Belvoir Close, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/0771/69  
Applicant: Bex Boutiques Limited 
Proposal: Illuminated projecting sign 
Location: 8, St. Marys Hill, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 06 November 2006 

 

S06/0918/12  
Applicant: M Parker & Sons Ltd 
Proposal: Erection of four dwellings including demolition of existing 

barns 
Location: 40, Main Road, Dyke 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 14 November 2006 

 

S06/1126/35  
Applicant: Fairway Investments PPC Ltd 
Proposal: Illuminated fascia sign and illuminated projecting sign 
Location: 7, High Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

S06/1127/35  
Applicant: Fairway Investments PPC Ltd 
Proposal: Alterations to shopfront and wall wash lighting 
Location: 7, High Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

S06/1158/19  
Applicant: Miss R  Deaves 
Proposal: Two 2-storey extensions including grooming room 
Location: Woodlands Kennels & Cattery, Morkery Lane, Castle 

Bytham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 15 November 2006 

 

S06/1207/56  
Applicant: Swallow Homes Retirement Benefit Fund 
Proposal: Redesign of six workshop units (prev approved under 

S04/1014) 
Location: Northfields Poultry Farm, Northfield Road, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 October 2006 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 2 

 

S06/1221/23  
Applicant: Mr R  Love 
Proposal: Erection of chalet bungalow and garage 
Location: Plot 6, Swinstead Road, Corby Glen 
Decision: Withdrawn - 31 October 2006 

 

S06/1228/41  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs N  Stanford 
Proposal: Erection of detached dwelling including integral double 

garage and parking 
Location: 9, Pond Street, Harlaxton, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 06 November 2006 

 

S06/1241/35  
Applicant: Mortgate Options (Remo) Ltd 
Proposal: Hanging sign and Display Cabinet 
Location: 4, Finkin Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/1243/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs G  Pattinson 
Proposal: Extension to dwelling 
Location: 3, Ogden Square, Gonerby Hill Foot, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 October 2006 

 

S06/1249/80  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs G  Fox 
Proposal: Change of use from workshop, office and showroom to 

herdspersons accommodation 
Location: Manor Farm, Manor House Lane, Dry Doddington 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/1250/37  
Applicant: David Warren 
Proposal: Variation of conditions 3 & 4 to S01/0119/37 (opening hours 

and change name) 
Location: Pt OS 8072, Gonerby Moor 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 31 October 2006 

 

S06/1257/25  
Applicant: Nottingham Community Housing Association 
Proposal: Amended porch design for approved 55 dwellings 

(S05/1288) 
Location: R/o 30-38, Spalding Road, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 October 2006 

 

S06/1258/32  
Applicant: Mrs   Boyd 
Proposal: Change of use to sand & rubber horse training arena 
Location: 8, Bourne Road, Folkingham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 October 2006 

 

S06/1259/41  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Hale 
Proposal: Extension & alterations to dwelling 
Location: 1, The Drift, Harlaxton 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 31 October 2006 

 



Table 2 / Page 3 

 

S06/1260/03  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs C  Duffill 
Proposal: Demolition of existing garage, porch and utility and erection 

of two storey side extension 
Location: Hill House, Kirkby Underwood Road, Aslackby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/1262/35  
Applicant: Mr H  Peng 
Proposal: Change of use from retail to (A3) takeaway 
Location: 26, Westgate, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 01 November 2006 

 

S06/1269/57  
Applicant: Mr G  Gammon 
Proposal: Single storey new extension and siting of an underground 

gas tank 
Location: Rose Farm Lodge, Toll Bar Road, Marston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 01 November 2006 

 

S06/1270/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Parkin 
Proposal: Two storey side extension and alterations to existing garage 
Location: 9, Ermine Way, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/1271/02  
Applicant: M J  Lister 
Proposal: Erection of single storey side extension to provide garage, 

porch & bedroom space 
Location: 8, Brookside Close, Ancaster 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/1273/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D  Musson 
Proposal: Rear extension to dwelling 
Location: 19, Cedarwood Close, Gonerby Hill Foot, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/1274/46  
Applicant: Mrs L  Taylor and Mr M Wyles 
Proposal: Two storey extension and conservatory to rear 
Location: 5, Village Streets, Gelston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/1276/58  
Applicant: Mr M  Kirkham 
Proposal: Replace garage door with window & provide side balcony 
Location: 57, Station Road, Morton 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 30 October 2006 

 

S06/1278/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs A  Whatley 
Proposal: Single storey extension to dwelling 
Location: 11, Ventnor Avenue, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 4 

 

S06/1282/50  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs A  Brooks 
Proposal: Double garage and mower store 
Location: The Willows, Bourne Road, Langtoft 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/1283/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Allen 
Proposal: Two storey extension rear of dwelling 
Location: 49, New Beacon Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 01 November 2006 

 

S06/1284/12  
Applicant: D  Towers & Son 
Proposal: Change of use from haulage to mixed use of light industrial, 

storage & an MOT testing station 
Location: Meadow Drove Farm, Meadow Drove, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 14 November 2006 

 

S06/1285/50  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D  Brooks 
Proposal: Extension to bungalow 
Location: The Willows, Bourne Road, Langtoft 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/1286/12  
Applicant: B W  Riddle 
Proposal: Variation of condition 2 of p/p S03/0308/12 (specific waste 

materials) 
Location: B W Riddle Engine Recycling Centre, South Fen Road, 

Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/1287/35  
Applicant: William Hill Limited 
Proposal: Erection of 2 satellite antennae and tv aerial to rear 
Location: 45, High Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/1288/12  
Applicant: Bradshaw & Willson 
Proposal: Erection of 2 semi-detached houses with forecourt parking 
Location: Milk Depot, Manning Road, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1289/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs P  Price 
Proposal: Two storey side & rear extension with car port 
Location: 13, Queens Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 31 October 2006 

 

S06/1291/12  
Applicant: Mr J  Simpson 
Proposal: New shopfront 
Location: Jessie Bellamy, 21-23, North Street, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 13 November 2006 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 5 

 

S06/1293/25  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Catt 
Proposal: Ground floor extension and first floor extension to rear of 

dwelling 
Location: 17, Bridge Street, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

S06/1294/34  
Applicant: Mr M  Phillips 
Proposal: Siting of temporary portable building and storage container 
Location: The Poplars, Bulby Lane, Fulbeck 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/1295/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs A  Hewitt 
Proposal: Conversion of warehouse to dwelling 
Location: 10, North Street, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/1296/83  
Applicant: Dr C  Hale 
Proposal: Erection of detached garage 
Location: Woolsthorpe Surgery, Main Street, Woolsthorpe-by-Belvoir 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/1297/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs R  Standen 
Proposal: 1st floor side extension & hipped roof over garage 
Location: 11, Roman Bank, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

S06/1300/44  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs C J  Short 
Proposal: Erection of two dwellings 
Location: 42, Donnington Road, Horbling 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 15 November 2006 

 

S06/1301/35  
Applicant: Lloyds TSB plc 
Proposal: Replace existing sign with illuminated fascia sign 
Location: Lloyds Tsb Bank Plc, 42, St. Peters Hill, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 16 November 2006 

 

S06/1303/54  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Parker 
Proposal: Replacement dwelling 
Location: 197, Belton Lane, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1304/21  
Applicant: Mrs P  Tomlinson 
Proposal: Two storey rear extension 
Location: 57, Moore Close, Claypole 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 6 

 

S06/1306/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Dawkins 
Proposal: Rear conservatory (retrospective) 
Location: 12, Tennyson Way, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/1307/58  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D M  Parker 
Proposal: Garage and repositioning of existing entrance to serve 

house and barn conversions 
Location: 29, Stainfield Road, Hanthorpe 
Decision: Refused - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/1308/33  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Smith 
Proposal: Single storey extension to dwelling 
Location: Summer Trees, Tow Lane, Foston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1309/51  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs R  Arlott 
Proposal: Thatched roof to dwelling 
Location: Old Manor Farm, Lenton 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1310/33  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs C  Preira 
Proposal: Single storey side and rear extension 
Location: 12, Burgin Close, Foston 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

S06/1311/76  
Applicant: Mr T  Lyons 
Proposal: Residential development (outline) 
Location: Land Between 60 And 60A, Northorpe Lane, Thurlby 
Decision: Refused - 14 November 2006 

 

S06/1312/56  
Applicant: Mr P  Langan 
Proposal: Loft conversion with rear facing dormer window and kitchen 

extension 
Location: 25, High Street, Market Deeping 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

S06/1315/35  
Applicant: United Lincs Hospitals NHS Trust 
Proposal: Single storey extension to form new main entrance 
Location: Grantham & District Hospital, 101, Manthorpe Road, 

Grantham 
Decision: Withdrawn - 06 November 2006 

 

S06/1317/63  
Applicant: Mr D  Burlton 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension to dwelling 
Location: 2, Queensway, Pointon 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 7 

 

S06/1318/20  
Applicant: PGL Travel Ltd 
Proposal: Demolish classrooms & erection of dining room, kitchen & 

toilets & creation of new access 
Location: Teaching Block, Caythorpe Court, Caythorpe Heath Lane, 

Caythorpe 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 16 November 2006 

 

S06/1320/06  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs T  Lees 
Proposal: First floor side and rear and single storey rear extensions to 

dwelling 
Location: Manor View, Casthorpe Road, Barrowby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1321/35  
Applicant: Mr M  Watson 
Proposal: Single storey side extension, pitched roof to existing 

garage, canopy to front and conservatory to rear 
(retrospective) 

Location: 15, Southlands Drive, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

S06/1323/35  
Applicant: Crystal of Grantham 
Proposal: Erection of three flagpoles and associated flags 
Location: Crystal Of Grantham, Autumn Park, Dysart Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1325/69  
Applicant: Ms A  Irvine & Mr I Barwell 
Proposal: Re-siting of 1.8 metre boundary fence 
Location: 6, Selwyn Road, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 14 November 2006 

 

S06/1326/32, 40  
Applicant: Mr J  Kirby 
Proposal: 1st floor & 2 storey side extensions with single storey rear 

extension 
Location: The Cottage, Hanthorpe Road, Stainfield 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 15 November 2006 

 

S06/1328/06  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs A  Gallagher 
Proposal: Erection of boundary wall 
Location: Brindle Lodge, Nottingham Road, Barrowby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1330/54  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D  Vaughan 
Proposal: Erection of two single storey side extensions 
Location: Tuesday Cottage, Newgate Lane, Londonthorpe 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 17 November 2006 

 

 

 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 8 

 

S06/1331/20  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs R  James 
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension 
Location: Picton House, Waterloo Road, Caythorpe 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 13 November 2006 

 

S06/1332/02  
Applicant: Mr E  Christmas 
Proposal: Creation of vehicular access and erection of detached 

double garage 
Location: Rose Cottage, Carlton Road, Sudbrook 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 13 November 2006 

 

S06/1334/65  
Applicant: Mr J  Howett 
Proposal: Change of use of holiday accommodation to dwelling 
Location: Granary Cottage, Little Humby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 01 November 2006 

 

S06/1338/69  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Harkness 
Proposal: Two storey side extension to dwelling and detached garage 
Location: 27, Highlands Way, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 10 November 2006 

 

S06/1339/25  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs K  Daly 
Proposal: Residential development (outline) 
Location: 79, Eastgate, Deeping St. James 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 15 November 2006 

 

S06/1340/35  
Applicant: Sharon E  Wennekers 
Proposal: Formation of vehicular access 
Location: 102, Harrowby Lane, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 13 November 2006 

 

S06/1342/14  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs M  Crush 
Proposal: Erection of conservatory 
Location: The White Cottage, Braceby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 17 November 2006 

 

S06/1343/35  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Murphy 
Proposal: Single storey extensions to rear and side and two storey 

extension to side 
Location: 23, Rushcliffe Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1344/69  
Applicant: Mr Nigel  Ingle 
Proposal: Rear conservatory (retrospective) 
Location: Highland View, 1a Ermine Way, Stamford 
Decision: Approved - 03 November 2006 

 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 9 

 

S06/1346/35  
Applicant: CWS Financial Services 
Proposal: Replacement signage - fascia & internally illuminated 

projecting signs 
Location: Co-op Food Store, 143, Princess Drive, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 13 November 2006 

 

S06/1347/03  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Burgess 
Proposal: Single storey conservatory to rear 
Location: Woodbine Cottage, Kirkby Underwood Road, Aslackby 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 17 November 2006 

 

S06/1348/12  
Applicant: Mr W  Ash 
Proposal: Erection of garages & store with flat over 
Location: Home Farm, Main Road, Dyke 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 16 November 2006 

 

S06/1350/59  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D & J  Farmer 
Proposal: New vehicular access 
Location: 17, Main Street, Normanton 
Decision: Refused - 17 November 2006 

 

S06/1351/23  
Applicant: CWS Retail Financial Services 
Proposal: Erection of 1no. fascia sign and 1no. projecting sign (non-

illuminated) 
Location: Co-op Store, 5-6, High Street, Corby Glen 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 10 November 2006 

 

S06/1352/12  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Bates 
Proposal: First floor side extension 
Location: 32, Stephenson Way, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 09 November 2006 

 

S06/1354/69  
Applicant: Mr M  Hindmarch 
Proposal: Demolition of single storey flat roofed building and erection 

of two storey car showrooms and shop to front and rear 
Location: Hindmarch & Co (Stamford) Ltd, Uffington Road, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 16 November 2006 

 

S06/1358/12  
Applicant: Mrs N Jacobs, Bourne Town Council 
Proposal: Change of use from residential to cemetery office & staff 

facilities 
Location: Bourne Cemetery, 47, South Road, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1361/68  
Applicant: Miss N  Prime 
Proposal: Proposed extension to provide new kitchen, family room 

and front lobby 
Location: 100, Great Close, South Witham 
Decision: Refused - 14 November 2006 

 



Table 2 / Page 10 

 

S06/1362/82  
Applicant: B  Richards 
Proposal: Single storey extension to front and side 
Location: The Holt, Bottom Street, Witham-on-the-hill 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 10 November 2006 

 

S06/1363/69  
Applicant: J  Milne 
Proposal: Two storey rear extension 
Location: 25, Conduit Road, Stamford 
Decision: Refused - 14 November 2006 

 

S06/1364/35  
Applicant: Moy Park Ltd 
Proposal: Erection of a plant room 
Location: Gonerby Hill Foot, Grantham 
Decision: Approved - 08 November 2006 

 

S06/1368/22  
Applicant: The National Trust 
Proposal: Variation of Condition (S06/0399) 
Location: PT OS 3626, Water Lane, Woolsthorpe By Colsterworth 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 17 November 2006 

 

S06/1371/35  
Applicant: David Wilson Homes 
Proposal: Erection  of single storey rear extension to dwelling 
Location: Plot 331, Springfield Road, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 17 November 2006 

 

S06/1377/12  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D  McQueen 
Proposal: Two storey side extensions, new porch & pitched roof to 

existing bay window (including demolition of existing annexe 
and garage) 

Location: 34, Mill Drove, Bourne 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 17 November 2006 

 

S06/1394/36  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs   Doust 
Proposal: Two storey side & rear extension above & in front of exit 
Location: Glendower House, Greatford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 13 November 2006 

 

S06/1467/69  
Applicant: Voujon Restaurants 
Proposal: Illuminated shop sign and projecting sign 
Location: 26-27, Broad Street, Stamford 
Decision: Withdrawn - 10 November 2006 

 

S06/AG/11/40  
Applicant: Mr L  Hammond 
Proposal: Erection of potato store 
Location: 19, Chapel Street, Haconby 
Decision: Withdrawn - 06 November 2006 

 

 

 



Table 2 / Page 11 

 

S06/LB/6609/69  
Applicant: Bex Boutiques Limited 
Proposal: Alteration of listed building (illuminated projecting sign) 
Location: 8, St. Marys Hill, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 06 November 2006 

 

S06/LB/6656/69  
Applicant: East Midlands Communications Limited 
Proposal: Alteration of listed building (signage) and repainting shop 

front 
Location: 4, St. Pauls Street, Stamford 
Decision: Refused - 14 November 2006 

 

S06/LB/6665/35  
Applicant: The National Trust 
Proposal: Replacement of existing timber gates 
Location: Grantham House, Castlegate, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 16 November 2006 

 

S06/LB/6670/35  
Applicant: Mr H  Peng 
Proposal: Installation of flue 
Location: 26, Westgate, Grantham, NG316LX 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 01 November 2006 

 

S06/LB/6671/35  
Applicant: William Hill Limited 
Proposal: Alteration of listed building (2 satellite antennae and tv 

aerial to rear) 
Location: 45, High Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/LB/6673/35  
Applicant: Mortgate Options 
Proposal: Hanging sign and display cabinet. 
Location: 4, Finkin Street, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 03 November 2006 

 

S06/LB/6674/58  
Applicant: Mr & Mrs D M  Parker 
Proposal: Garage and repositioning of existing entrance to serve 

house and barn conversions (LB) 
Location: 29, Stainfield Road, Hanthorpe 
Decision: Refused - 02 November 2006 

 

S06/LB/6675/35  
Applicant: Grantham Investments 
Proposal: Replacement windows to front elevation 
Location: 7, Westgate, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 06 November 2006 

 

S06/LB/6676/69  
Applicant: Trustees of Truesdales Hospital 
Proposal: Alteration of listed building (internal and minor external 

alterations) 
Location: 2, Truesdale Hospital, Scotgate, Stamford 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 02 November 2006 

 



Table 2 / Page 12 

 

S06/LB/6679/35  
Applicant: Lloyds TSB plc 
Proposal: Replace existing sign with new fascia sign with illuminated 

letters 
Location: Lloyds Tsb Bank Plc, 42, St. Peters Hill, Grantham 
Decision: Approved conditionally - 16 November 2006 
 

 



 

- 1 - 

TABLE 3 
PLANNING APPEALS 2006/2007  (excluding Enforcements) 
Update for October 2006 
 
NO OF APPEALS DETERMINED  (based on Decision Date) 

 
 

 2001/02 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 

LODGED 61 48 49 107 55 29 

DISMISSED 34½ 26½ 22½ 65½ 51½  20 

ALLOWED 20 21 9½ 21½ 20½ 8 

WITHDRAWN 2 2 1 3 5 3 

OUTSTANDING 20 20 37 53 29 27 

 
 

APPEAL DECISIONS LAST MONTH (OCTOBER) 
 

 
S03/1669/69   IVW 
Maiden Properties Limited 
Erection of an hotel 
Former Welland Motor Factors Site, North Street, 
Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
09-May-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
23-Oct-2006 

 

 
S05/1183/34   KJC 
N  Fitzakerly 
Retention of vehicular access to Brant Road to 
serve grazing land to rear field 
Willow Farm, Brant Road, Fulbeck 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
08-May-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
24-Oct-2006 

 

 
S05/1260/16   IVW 
Mr & Mrs   Booty 
Erection of livery stables 
Park Farm, Careby 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
06-Jun-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
30-Oct-2006 

 

 
S05/1328/46   MH 
K  Blyth 
Erection of dwelling 
Land Rear Of Beechers Farm, Hough-on-the-hill 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
22-May-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
24-Oct-2006 

 

 
S05/1554/02   SLM 
Sandy  Ford-Pain 
Change of use of part of premises as tea room 
The Barn 19a, Ermine Street, Ancaster 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
22-May-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
Appeal dismissed 

 
10-Oct-2006 

 

 
S05/1611/07   PJM 
E G  Wyman 
Change of use of agricultural land to school 
playing field 
Appeal against condition No.2 (vehicular and 
pedestrian access) 
Kirkstone House School, 1-6, Main Street, Baston 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
30-May-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
Appeal allowed 
with conditions 

 
12-Oct-2006 

 



 

- 2 - 

 

APPEAL DECISIONS OMITTED FROM AUGUST’S LIST 
 
 

 
S05/0354/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of five bungalows 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 
09-Aug-2005 

 
Date of H / I 
16-Aug-2006 

 

 
Appeal allowed 
with conditions 

 
30-Aug-2006 

 

 
S05/0922/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of 5 detached dwellings & garages 
accessed of Vicarage Lane 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 
21-Oct-2005 

 
Date of H / I 

 

 
Appeal allowed 
with conditions 

 
30-Aug-2006 

 

 
S05/0932/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of 5 detached dwellings & garages 
accessed of Vicarage Lane 
R/o Farbrooke, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 
21-Oct-2005 

 
Date of H / I 

 

 
Appeal allowed 
with conditions 

 
30-Aug-2006 

 
 
 

OUTSTANDING APPEALS 
 
 

 
S03/1348/35   PJM 
Ryan Michaels Limited 
Internally illuminated fascia and projecting 
signage 
77-78, Westgate, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
04-Mar-2004 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S03/LB/6110/35   PJM 
Ryan Michaels Ltd 
Fascia and projecting sign 
77-78, Westgate, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
10-Mar-2004 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/0640/76   PJM 
Michael  Chalmers 
Erection of double garage 
26, The Green, Thurlby 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
25-Oct-2005 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1219/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs J  Ogilvie-Davis 
Illuminated signage 
Mi Famiila, Old Barn Passage, St Mary's Street, 
Stamford 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 
27-Jan-2006 

 
Date of H / I 
24-Oct-2006 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

- 3 - 

 

 
S05/1575/69   JJ 
Mr J Regis & Mr J Stevenson, Stamford 
Developers Ltd 
Erection of five dwellings (including demolition of 
existing dwelling) 
Beverley House, New Cross Road, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
22-Jun-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1621/32   EAB 
Mrs K  Chester 
Amendment of windows & doors to UPVC & 
erection of flue to kitchen to rear extension. 
The New Inn, 10, West Street, Folkingham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
23-Aug-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/1656/69   MAS 
Wm Morrison Supermarkets 
Retail and leisure development and associated 
works 
Former Mirlees Blackstone Site, Uffington Road, 
Stamford 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 
15-Sep-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

 

 
 

 

 
S05/1681/78   PJM 
Mr A M  Navid 
Erection of two dwellings 
Barclay House, Bertie Lane, Uffington 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
14-Aug-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/LB/6464/69   IVW 
Mr & Mrs J  Ogilvie-Davis 
Alteration of listed building (Illuminated signage) 
Mi Famiila, Old Barn Passage, St Mary's Street, 
Stamford 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 
27-Jan-2006 

 
Date of H / I 
24-Oct-2006 

 

 
 

 

 
S05/LB/6470/69   IVW 
Jane  Cox 
Extension to listed building (retrospective) 
24, St. Leonards Street, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
13-Jun-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/LB/6513/32   EAB 
Mrs K  Chester 
Amendment of windows & doors to UPVC & 
erection of flue to kitchen to rear extension 
The New Inn, 10, West Street, Folkingham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
23-Aug-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S05/CA/6520/69   JJ 
Mr J Regis & Mr J Stevenson, Stamford 
Developers Ltd 
Demolition of dwelling in the Conservation Area 
Beverley House, New Cross Road, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
22-Jun-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 



 

- 4 - 

 

 
S06/0088/35   MH 
Hampsons Group 
Erection of 30 2-bed apartments & 5 1-bed 
apartments 
Hampsons Site, Harlaxton Road, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
03-Oct-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0092/12   MH 
Stamford Homes Ltd 
Demolition of factory/mill and erection of 121 
dwellings 
Wherry Lane, Off, South Road, Bourne 
 

 
Informal Hearing 

 
Start Date 
26-Jul-2006 

 
Date of H / I 
07-Nov-2006 

 

 
 

 

 
S06/0197/59   MH 
Mr & Mrs A  Brown 
Erection of dwelling 
Land Adj Grassibank, Heath Lane, Normanton 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
28-Sep-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0241/55   KJC 
Mr & Mrs J A  Willis 
Erection of dwelling 
Adjacent The Parklands, Vicarage Lane, Long 
Bennington 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
29-Jun-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0301/55   KJC 
Jill  Rose 
Erection of single dwelling 
15, Wheatsheaf Lane, Long Bennington 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
26-Jul-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0315/12   PJM 
Mr & Mrs P  Stark 
Erection of dwelling 
R/o The Coach House, Burghley Street, Bourne 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
16-Aug-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0328/35   MH 
Mr & Mrs   Bennett 
Change of use to private residential gypsy site 
Lazy Acres, Gorse Lane, Grantham 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 
05-Sep-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

 

 
 

 

 
S06/0333/13   PJM 
Mr & Mrs D  Ivtsan 
Change of use of part of building used as stables 
and training centre to B1 offices 
Spa House, Spa Road, Braceborough 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
01-Aug-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

- 5 - 

 

 
S06/0370/35   BW 
Mr J D  Lucas 
Erection of dwelling 
land adjacent to 58, Hornsby Road, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
03-Aug-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0576/54   MH 
Saxondale Properties 
Erection of three retail units & six flats 
Land Adj. Lytham Close, Sunningdale, Grantham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
19-Oct-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0613/52   JST 
Mr S  Wright 
Erection of two habitable dwellings with garages 
and access 
7, Church Lane, Little Bytham 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
15-Aug-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0622/55   MH 
Ablehomes Ltd 
Erection of four dwellings and garage and 
replacement garage to Farbrooke 
Farbrooke, 17, Main Road, Long Bennington 
 

 
Public Inquiry 

 
Start Date 
26-Sep-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

 

 
 

 

 
S06/0667/69   BW 
Mr & Mrs J  Pye 
Erection of boundary fence 
2, Angus Close, Stamford 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
22-Aug-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/0708/09   EAB 
Mr H J  Sandall 
Two bungalows and new access 
R/O 35, 37 & 39, Birthorpe Road, Billingborough 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
31-Oct-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 

 
S06/1056/04   BW 
Mr S  Baldwin 
Erection of extension to form a domestic annexe 
1, Stowe Road, Barholm 
 

 
Written Evidence 

 
Start Date 
13-Oct-2006 

 
Date of H / I 

N/A 
 

 
 

 
 

 



Agenda Item 7 
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 14TH NOVEMBER 2006
	5 PLANNING MATTERS:
	6 INFORMATION RELATING TO DEVELOPMENT CONTROL AND OTHER PLANNING ACTIVITIES.
	DC Cttee (8rpts) Table1
	DC Cttee (8del) Table2
	DC Cttee (8apps) Table3

	7 ENFORCEMENT ACTION

